
Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 31 January 2020 1

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Telephone:  (01874) 624437
Plas y Ffynnon
Cambrian Way
Brecon
Powys
LD3 7HP

Dear Member

A meeting of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in THE 
CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON 
LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 31ST JANUARY, 2020 AT 10.00 AM when your 
attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely

Julian Atkins

Chief Executive

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FILMS AND
WEBCASTS ALL ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE  - 

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/ 

Fire Evacuation Advice

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase,

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3

1 CORRESPONDENCE 

 To receive and consider the attached Schedule of Correspondence and any 
recommendations thereon (below).
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Public Document Pack

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/


Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 31 January 2020 2

To receive any declarations of interest from members relating to items 
on the agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to 
the attendance sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally 
and in writing, specifying the nature of the interest.
 
If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure 
that you inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so 
that this can be recorded in the minutes

 

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 25 
October 2019  and to authorise the Chairman to sign them as a correct 
record.

4 ACTION TRACKING (Pages 11 - 14)

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING SCHEME 

To give the public an opportunity to address the committee in line with 
the notice required under the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme.

 

A: Budget Monitoring

6 Q3 BUDGET PERFORMANCE (Pages 15 - 34)

7 PENSION FUND TRIENNIAL VALUATION (Pages 35 - 48)

B: Audit

8 WALES AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (Pages 49 - 62)

9 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT Q3 (Pages 63 - 92)

C: Performance and Risk

10 PERFORMANCE AND RISK REVIEW - QUARTER 3 (Pages 93 - 120)

11 COMPLAINTS, FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND 



Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 31 January 2020 3

COMPLIMENTS (Pages 121 - 128)

To note the reports.

12 ROLE OF AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To consider the need to review the role of the committee and its effectiveness.

13 ELECTION OF INTERIM DEPUTY CHAIR OF AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To appoint an interim Chair of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee until the 
next Annual General Meeting.

14 MEMBER & OFFICER REGISTER OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 

D: Other Business

15 OTHER BUSINESS 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE

1. To receive apologies for absence

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 
as to warrant consideration.

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Julia Gruffydd or Angharad 
Hawkes on 01874 624437



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 25 October 2019

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 25TH OCTOBER, 2019

PRESENT:

Powys

Cllr K Laurie-Parry

Monmouthshire

Cllr A Webb (Chair)

Carmarthenshire

Cllr K Madge, Cllr A James

Rhondda Cynon Taff

Cllr G Thomas

Members appointed by the Welsh Government

Mr Ian Rowat (Deputy Chair), Mr James Marsden and Mrs Sue Holden

In Attendance

Sean O'Connor, Monitoring Officer
Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive
Elaine Standen, Finance Manager
Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager
Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager

46/19 Correspondence 

The Chair welcomed Helen Cargill and Andrea Calise to the meeting from TIAA, the 
Authority’s internal auditors.
 

47/19 Declarations of Interest 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 25 October 2019

No declarations of interest were made.
 

48/19 Minutes 

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 
July 2019 were approved and the Chair authorised to sign 
them as a correct record.

 

49/19 Public Speaking Scheme 

There were no requests to speak.
 

50/19 Action Tracking 

Members noted outstanding actions arising from meetings of the Authority and Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee.
 

51/19 Budget Performance Quarter 2 2019/20 

The Finance Manager presented the budget report for quarter two and advised that the 
budget was 54% spent and 27% committed, which was on target for this point in the year.  
The project scorecard gave additional information.
 
Members sought clarification on a number of issues.  One member raised the issue of the 
use of resources for bracken cutting which he advised was not ecologically sound and 
there was evidence to support this.  He would raise this later in the meeting.
 

            RESOLVED:  That members accept the report.
 

52/19 Performance and Risk review - quarter 2 

Members considered the quarter 1 performance and risk report and noted changes to the 
format which they had requested at the last meeting.
 
A member asked for the reference to the Local Nature Partnership meeting to be 
amended as what was stated in the report did not happen.  He also formally asked that 
the Authority’s policy on bracken control be reviewed.  The Chief Executive confirmed 
that he would take this up.
 
A member felt that it was still unclear to her what the role of the committee was and 
what was expected of members, which was due partly to the quantity of information and 
partly how it was reported.  She did not need that level of detail, but also gave examples 
of where the level of detail was insufficient for her to scrutinise how projects were 
progressing.
 

Page 6



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 3 25 October 2019

The Chief Executive hoped that the new report format would help show the ‘golden 
thread’ in reporting and the level of detail needed.  The IT and Systems Manager reported 
on his work with Powys Public Service Board where he was seeing good practice.
 
On balance members concluded that they wished to continue to see all report formats as 
there was useful detail in each of these.
 

RESOLVED: 
 
a)  To note the performance reports and ask officers to 

amend as outlined in the meeting;
 
b) That all three performance reports would continue to 

be presented to Audit and Scrutiny Committee in 
future.

 

53/19 Compliments/Complaints/Freedom of Information 

The report for quarter 1 was received.
 

54/19 Draft annual report 2018/19 

The IT and Systems Manager presented the draft Annual Report which would be signed 
off by the Authority on 29 October. He thanked Sophie Godfrey and Emma Gray for 
their help with content and graphic design.
 
A member wondered whether the number of hours worked was a sufficient 
measurement for volunteers and if satisfaction should be measured.  He would be bringing 
a report to the Policy Forum on 22 November.
 
The officer was asked to reword the section relating to bracken control and the officer 
advised that this referred to work from 2018/19 and that things had progressed since 
then.
 
A member commented that the document could engage people more, although this was 
down to packaging.  There also needed to be acknowledgement of all the achievement, 
particularly as some of the amber scores were borderline green.
 
In response to a question about the apparently low number of responses to the Rights of 
Way Improvement Plan consultation the officer advised that these were statutory 
responses; over 300 responses had been received from the wider public.
 
A member raised the issue of stretch targets in numerical terms, which would support the 
golden thread concept and played to a team approach and how performance was 
reported.  The Chief Executive agreed that the Corporate Plan would need to change 
radically as a result of the change programme, and should include stretch targets.  The 
officer agreed that further discussion was needed on this.
 

Page 7



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 4 25 October 2019

A member suggested that the Authority could benchmark against other organisations.
 

RESOLVED:  That Members agree the submission of the 
report to the Authority for approval subject to any 
amendments agreed at the meeting.

 

55/19 Internal Audit update 

Ms Cargill presented the Block 1 progress report.  She advised that while issues had been 
raised is relation to the cyber security audit, these were things that could be remedied 
very easily.
 
Members welcomed the report but still maintained that the Authority was audited to a 
level disproportionate to its size, and a comment was made that a shrinking workforce 
sometimes had a negative impact on audit results. The point was also made about the cost 
of a process that sometimes stated the obvious but there was acknowledgement that 
some important points were also made.
 
A member felt that after ten years of austerity when there had been staff changes it was 
important that internal audit picked up any issues that needed addressing.
 
The IT and Systems Manager advised members of progress against the IT audit actions, 
and had welcomed the useful feedback from the audit.  The Finance Manager highlighted 
the need to avoid complacency about internal controls, given the responsibility of the 
Chair and Chief Executive for signing the Annual Governance Statement each year.  The 
Authority neglected scrutiny of its systems at its peril, to ensure that it carried out what it 
said it was doing.
 
A member queried how important the business continuity audit was given that the 
Authority did not provide critical services, and Ms Cargill confirmed that the audit was 
based on what the Authority needed to have in place, not measured against local 
authorities.  The IT and Systems Manager reassured members that the audit was carried 
out against a matrix of prioritised functions and was not over complex.
 
In response to a question about first aiders and the location of defibrillators the Chief 
Executive advised that he and the Delivery Director had attended a Directing Safely 
Course and had concluded that the Health and Safety Working Group needed to be more 
proactive in reviewing the Authority’s policies and procedures.
 

RESOLVED:  That the contents of the report and 
outstanding management actions are accepted.

 

56/19 Update on Cooke and Arkwright work 

The Chief Executive referred to a report commissioned by the Authority to review its 
land holdings.  A large number of recommendations had been made and officers were 
currently querying some of these and requesting more information.  They would then 

Page 8



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 5 25 October 2019

draw up a prioritised action list for consideration by the Policy Forum on 22 November.  
A briefing for chairs would be arranged in advance of that meeting.
 

57/19 Other Business 

The Chair allowed the following two items of business:
 
1.     s6 Environment Act
 
The Biodiversity and Land Management Champion advised that guidance on this legislation 
may be available by the end of October, which would give just two months to prepare, 
approve and submit the Authority’s first report by the deadline of 31 December.  Given 
the political landscape at present, this gave him considerable concern.  The Chief 
Executive had not been advised of this but would take it up urgently with officers.
 
2.     Scrutiny
 
Members had some discussion about how scrutiny could be carried out in future, given 
that the Authority did not have the capacity for lengthy scrutiny studies.  It was suggested 
that the member development themed days were one opportunity to scrutinise specific 
projects or areas of work and to capture member interventions.  Some quite robust 
questions could be asked as part of this process.
 
The Chair of the Governance and Member Development Working Group advised that 
the role and scope of Audit and Scrutiny Committee had been discussed as part of the 
governance review and there was some confusion as to the role of the committee in 
terms of receiving/approving reports.  She suggested that the role of the committee be 
discussed on a future agenda.
 
The Chair felt that if people were committed to scrutiny then it would happen.  The Chief 
Executive advised that the Authority did not need to set a bespoke process in place as it 
would feed into the different ways of working;  the governance review had brought this 
out.
 

Signed as a correct record
Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee Date Minute No Agenda item title Decision text Action Deadline Date Owner Comments Status

National Park Authority 28/07/2017 10:00 10 SDF Approval over £30,000 Arrange for Big Pit apprentices to give a 

presentation to the Authority

Helen Roderick 15/03/2019:  - Liaising with Angharad re 

possible dates for this visit.

In progress

National Park Authority 10/11/2017 10:00 13 Member Champion Reports Schedule Bethan Price to do sweep up 

session with members

30/11/17 00:00 Helen Roderick/ 

Julia Gruffydd

27/09/2018:  - Julia to organise with new 

WLO

To do

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 11 Affordable Housing Working Group 

Recommendation - Award of 

Commuted Sums

Arrange legal agreement with Melin Homes 

and transfer of money / Advise PCC of NPA 

decision

31/03/18 00:00 Mrs Helen 

Lucoq

16/04/2018:  - Further information has been 

requested from Melin Homes in terms of 

timeframes relating to purchase of land, 

submission of planning application etc.

delayed

National Park Authority 28/06/2019 10:00 7 Meithrin Mynydd Terms of Reference Consult graziers on Meithrin Mynydd ToR and 

bring back to NPA for approval

31/07/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

Angharad 

Hawkes

24/07/2019:  - This is for Members to lead 

on, the ToR having been revised by 

Members rather than officers.

delayed

National Park Authority 30/07/2019 12:00 8 Contract at Plas y Ffynnon Full options appraisal for HQ future 

accommodation and bring back to NPA

30/09/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins

To do

National Park Authority 03/09/2019 12:30 14 Govilon Line Negotiate sale of freehold land in line with 

report to NPA

31/10/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 10/01/2020: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - C&A have written to the parties 

concerned outlining terms

Daily email reminders turned off.

In progress

National Park Authority 29/10/2019 11:30 11 Annual Report 2018/19 Finalise Annual Report, get translated, publish 

and send to WAO

01/11/19 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell

To do

NPA

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6559
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6559
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52570
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52570
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7726
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7726
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52941
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52941
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6605
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6605
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=53360
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=53360
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54169
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54169


National Park Authority 29/10/2019 11:30 16 Consultation Draft Llangattock 

Conservation Area Review

Publish Llangattock Conservation Area 

Appraisal for consultation

08/11/19 00:00 Mrs Janet 

Poole

To do

Schedule final decision at NPA on Modgov for 

Llangattock Conservation Area Appraisal

08/11/19 00:00 Mrs Janet 

Poole

To do

Consider adding to Scheme of Delegation 

review, officers and Chair of NPA to sign off 

consultation drafts in future (talk to Tracy 

first!)

31/03/20 00:00 Sean O'Connor

To do

National Park Authority 29/10/2019 11:30 8 Future Priorities & Structure Proposals Implement reporting and restructuring 

decisions made by NPA and make progress 

report to NPA in Feb 2020

31/03/20 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 17/01/2020: Status changed from To do to In 

progress - Report prepared for Members' 

consideration at EGM on January 24th, 2020

In progress

National Park Authority 10/12/2019 12:30 12 BBNPA Position Statement on Climate 

Change and Nature Recovery

Finalise position statement on climate change 

and publish (get translated)

24/12/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

National Park Authority 10/12/2019 12:30 13 Biodiversity & resilence of ecosystems 

duty report

Finalise response (check webcast and do a 

covering letter as JA suggested) on 

Environment Act and submit to Welsh 

Government

24/12/19 00:00 Rebecca Price To do

National Park Authority 10/12/2019 12:30 14 Position Statement for Woodland 

Restoration and Expansion

Finalise and publish Woodland position 

statement (get translated)

24/12/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

To do

P
age 12

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54176
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54176
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54177
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54177
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54178
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7701
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54166
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55766
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7712
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55767
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=55767


Audit and Scrutiny Committee 26/07/2019 10:00 13 Integrated assurance framework Rework the Integrated Assessment 

Framework and bring to next ASC

30/09/19 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell To do

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 25/10/2019 10:00 7 Performance and Risk review - quarter 

2

Talk to Chair and officers re position 

statement on bracken control (JM raised in 

ASC)

29/11/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

Amend ref to Local Nature partnership in 

Board Assurance and how it's worded

31/10/19 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell To do

ASC

PAROW

P
age 13

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6609
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6609
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52884
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=52884
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7698
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7698
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=7698
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54151
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54151
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54151
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54152
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=54152


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Budget Monitoring: Quarter 3 2019/20

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 31 January 2020

Report Author
Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact details elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk
Purpose of Report To inform Members of performance against budget for the 

third quarter of 2019/20

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1: Budget Monitoring Summary to 31/12/19

Enclosure 2: Project Scorecard Q3

Enclosure 3: S106 and Affordable Housing to 31/12/19

Enclosure 4: Additional in-year funding award letter

Recommendation a) That Members accept the report

1.1 Introduction 

For the third quarter of 2019/20, 81% of the total budget has been spent and a further 22% 
committed.  There are a  number of large multi-year projects where there are long-term 
commitments (purchase orders) in place, a number of projects funded by an internal 
transfer from reserves at the year end and several larger schemes where grant is received 
some time in arrears (Gunpowder Works and Black Mountains Land Use Partnership).  
Commitments also include the Sustainable development fund grant applications approved 
but not claimed.  These factors all increase spend as a proportion of the estimate.

Quarterly figures for each department are summarised below:

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Full 
Year 

Budget 
(Net) 

2019/20

Actual to 
end Q3      

2019/20

Committed 
2019/20

Net Budget 
remaining 
2019/20

Net Budget 
Spent and 

Committed

Department %
£000 £000 £000 £000

Chief Executive’s Office 1,395 979 184 232 83%

Delivery core 1,575 1,098 145 332 79%

Delivery projects 503 432 326 -255 151%

Planning core 740 566 22 152 79%
Planning projects* 99 -89 10 178 -81%
Capital Project 
expenditure 1,092 574 192 326 70%

Capital financing -1,045 -363 0 -692 34%

Other (including 
transfers to and from 
earmarked reserves)

-408 -25 0 -383 6%

 Total 3,951 3,181 879 -108 103%

Revenue Grant and 
Levies -3,767 -2,874 0 -893 76%

Transfer from General 
Reserve -183 0 0 -183 0

‘* Includes S106 Receipts.

1.2  Principal Budget Variances

Chief Executives Office

A significant payment in advance for the webcasting facility which will be accrued to future 
years over the life of the lease at the year-end has increased the apparent expenditure on 
Democratic Representation as at the end of the quarter.   Other CEO cost centres where 
expenditure appears high are also due to timing and multi-year commitments rather than 
additional cost.  Some additional IT equipment is in the process of being re-coded to new 
capital funding codes once the budget is establishedin the ledger (see commentary on projects 
below).  The budget for Welsh translation is fully spent and committed, indicating that more 
resources need to be set aside for translation costs.

Page 16



Following the departure of the NPMP Officer there has been no further spend to date against 
the National Park Management Plan budget which requires adjustment to reflect the fact that 
the revised approach to delivering the Plan using existing staff to deliver discrete packages of 
work has not worked as intended. Officers are working on an alternative delivery mechanism as 
a matter of urgency.

Delivery Core and Projects
Wardens’ project income from the Rights of Way delegation agreements with constituent 
Authorities is reimbursed at the end of the year.   A reduction in Rights of Way funding by 
Powys County Council has been indicated for next financial year but officers are in discussion 
with PCC colleagues regarding the potential for project income to offset the small shortfall 
anticipated.   The apparent overspend in Wardens’ core expenditure is caused by the large 
commitment for liveried vehicles which will not fall due until 2020/21.

The Black Mountains Partnership project includes significant commitments for consultancy 
work and the final year of bracken cutting.  Work is ongoing with Welsh Government to ensure 
that there is not a loss of some project funding due to changes in the approved spend profile.  
The grant claim to December is in preparation.

The invasive species development project is due to come to an end in June 2020 and a plan is in 
preparation to deliver and resource the Nature Recovery Action Plan using a range of funding 
which will include building on the benefits of this project.  Funds have been re-profiled into 
2020/21 to enable work to continue in the interim.

The Mountain Centre is likely to be financially affected by continuing issues in recovering 
payment from the previous catering franchisee.    Education services fee income is running 
ahead of the estimate and likely to generate an underspend.

The departure of the Sustainable Communities Manager will be likely to impact on the work 
programme which can be delivered by the team.  Part of her workload has been taken on by 
team members.  The new Waterfalls Country and Culturescapes  (EU-funded) projects are now 
in the budget.  There are continuing issues with the Atlantic Isles (EU funded) project in 
enabling claims to be made online.  

Other variances relate to the timing of grant and contributions receipts and are detailed in the 
enclosure.   The 2020/21 estimate will incorporate changes to the spend profile of current 
projects.

Planning
Planning Department expenditure and income is generally in line with the budget.   Invoices to 
Powys County Council for Search Fees have not been paid to date following a revision of the 
charging basis.    Further financial information on the current status of the S106 and Affordable 

Page 17



housing funds received and held is provided in a separate Enclosure.  The S106 receipt needs to 
be incorporated into the estimate.

A review of the LDP budget has identified that additional resources are needed to complete the 
LDP development and inspection process and these have been incorporated in the estimate for 
the current year as well as the draft budget for 2020-21.   The Authority has an earmarked 
reserve to help cover the LDP inspection costs.

1.3 PROJECT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The project scorecard enclosure provides an overview of project spend and financial progress.  
There are a number of significant projects where delivery and expenditure is likely to diverge 
from targets.  These are highlighted in red in the scorecard.  In some cases objectives are likely 
to take longer to be achieved and expenditure needs to be re-profiled, in others the objectives 
require further definition and agreement at a strategic level before delivery can take place.  
Comments in the scorecard provide further details.  

A developing issue relates to the unpredictability of Welsh Government Capital funding which 
has created difficulties in developing a coherent and strategic approach to projects supported 
by adequate staff resources.    For example, the receipt of significant additional funding (£611k) 
from Welsh Government in October with a target spend date of 31 March 2020 has placed 
additional demands on project managers.

The projects for which significant additional capital funding has been received are highlighted 
below and have been incorporated into the budget as soon as detailed and costed project plans 
and authorized budget adjustments have been submitted to Finance.  The Financial Regulations 
require that large budget revisions are reported to Members.  A copy of the award letter is 
provided in Enclosure 4.  The funds were received in January.

Additional in-year capital funding advised October 2019

CAPITAL
£

Cost 
Centre

 

 

Allocated 
to 
2019/20 
budget
£

Unallocated 
balance 

£
20,000 1814 Digital Archiving 20,000 0
70,000 1805 Electric pool vehicles 70,000 0

180,000 1812 IT projects 180,000
30,000 Llanthony Toilets refurbishment 30,000
16,000 Meithryn Mynydd Equipment 16,000
75,000 Mountain Centre outdoor play equipment 75,000
50,000 1813 Nature Recovery Action Plan implementation 50,000

170,000 1804 Rights of Way Improvements 170,000 0

Page 18



611,000       260,000 351,000

The Senior Leadership Group is working on developing and improving the project approval and 
management process but further Welsh Government capital grant funding may well be offered 
before the end of this financial year.  Consideration needs to be given urgently to how larger 
projects are approved by the Authority as well as the levels of delegation needed to establish 
new projects.  Internal Audit identified in 2018/19 that additional work is required on the 
process for developing, assessing and approving potential projects before grant funding is 
applied for.  The Delivery Director and SLG made some good progress on defining a robust 
project prioritisation process during the first half of 2019 but the change programme and the 
subsequent departure of the Delivery Director have had an impact on progress laterly.  Further 
work is required to complete the task and the IT and Systems Manager has been given the task 
of completing the work in preparation for further funding opportunities.

1.3 Conclusion

Ensuring that the Authority has the staff and managerial capacity to deliver, oversee and 
support projects has been one of the considerations of the change programme.  It is important 
that staffing requirements are assessed for new projects and that projects are fully scoped and 
their objectives clearly defined in advance in line with the strategic direction set by the 
Authority.  Where there is a risk that project delivery and spend targets will not be met, a clear 
escalation and problem-solving process needs to be established and followed.

RECOMMENDATION:

a) That Members accept the report.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons Summary Report:-  up to 31/12/2019 target 75%

APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2019/20

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget

Budget 

spent

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES QUERIES TO BUDGET HOLDER

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET

 & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % £

Chief Executive

2100 Human Resources 66,570 0 66,570 45,925 0 45,925 14,659 0 14,659 43,321

91

5,986

high cost of occupational health 

and counselling services - 

increasing use being made of 

these.  Little use of Carmarthen 

HR.  Order for full term of SLA for 

H&S

ES and EE to revise and check 

miscodes.

2101 Legal 63,550 0 63,550 46,837 0 46,837 13,050 0 13,050 47,733

94

3,663

Provision needed for Gunpowder 

Works legal costs, likely to be 

substantial over-spend.

2102 Finance 156,790 -19,140 137,650 98,354 -5,386 92,969 26,556 0 26,556 98,833

87

18,125

full year finance system and audit 

commitments to end of 2021

2103 Office Services 73,620 -270 73,350 46,250 -1,033 45,217 6,716 0 6,716 55,112 71 21,417 income slightly up on budget.

2104 Pool Cars 35,700 -35,700 0 27,832 -26,684 1,148 39,127 0 39,127 7,031

n/a

-40,275 

savings expected budget being 

revised for impact of ev purchases.

2109 Revenue Suspense Account 0 0 0 11,810 0 11,810 0 0 0 0 n/a -11,810 credit card recharges awaiting 

2110 Training 20,000 0 20,000 14,326 -285 14,041 2,583 0 2,583 14,991
83

3,376

Budget likely to be fully committed 

for year

2200 Information Technology 250,920 -11,530 239,390 212,268 -6,699 205,569 28,758 0 28,758 200,395

98

5,063

long-term order for microsoft 

licensing.  Some urgent spend 

relating to the capital funding for 

new IT purchases is currently 

coded here.

PF currently preparing a budget 

adjustment for the capital funding.  

Finance then to recode spend.

3104 National Park Management Plan 39,000 0 39,000 950 0 950 0 0 0 36,750 2 38,050

3120 Park Plan Officer 46,720 0 46,720 18,884 0 18,884 0 0 0 35,110

40

27,836

potential underspend - some 

resources will need to be applied to 

cover staff time in preparation of 

management plan elements.

PF to review funds required for 

current year.  Remaining funds to 

be reallocated.

2201 Communications - Translation (formerly PR) 10,000 0 10,000 9,956 0 9,956 2,433 0 2,433 7,497

124

-2,389 

Translation budget will need to be 

increased for 2020 onwards, new 

framework in place - cheaper 

translation potentially.

Budget to be increased - review 

options 

2301 Administrative Buildings - Plas Y Ffynnon 125,010 -1,000 124,010 82,773 -1,529 81,244 3,310 0 3,310 93,629
68

39,456

service charges not being billed by 

DPPCC

5000 Corporate Management 290,250 0 290,250 194,650 -11,581 183,069 38,925 0 38,925 186,952

76

68,256

final settlement of legacy from 

estate, NPP dividend.

purposeful use of legacies to be 

discussed and agreed with delivery 

managers.  Budget to be revised.

5100 Democratic Representation & Management 298,180 -13,574 284,606 229,910 -14,604 215,306 402 0 402 215,000 76 68,898

5102 Democratic Services Project - NPA's Induction 18,278 -18,278 0 16,337 -9,348 6,989 5,907 0 5,907 0
n/a

-12,896 

Further invoices pending, currently 

a small surplus

Total for Chief Executive 1,494,588 -99,492 1,395,096 1,057,062 -77,149 979,914 182,426 0 182,426 1,042,354 83 232,756

Delivery - Revenue Projects

1102 Wardens Works and Projects 63,545 -76,085 -12,540 58,775 -9,114 49,661 4,549 0 4,549 36,361
-432 

-66,750 

Rights of Way income invoiced in 

final quarter

JH to review miscodes with ES/RW 

to advise corrections.

1107 Waterfalls Country Wardening, Volunteers and site management costs35,540 -35,540 0 15,701 -12,178 3,523 0 0 0 978

n/a

-3,523 

Waterfalls warden budget - vehicle 

cost saving re EV covered by 

Green Growth - budget provides for 

volunteer van costs.

Review of maintenance of car 

parks needed.  Site management 

issues need to be addressed 

urgently.  Funding available.

1114 Ecology Projects 112,584 -29,120 83,464 54,645 -1,447 53,198 10,178 0 10,178 63,361

76

20,088

includes invasive species, vital 

signs projects, ecological 

monitoring.  Continuation currently 

being sought for invasive species 

work.

successor proposal to INNs linking 

to Nature Recovery programme to 

be developed.  Other potential 

funding available.

P
age 21



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2019/20

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget

Budget 

spent

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES QUERIES TO BUDGET HOLDER

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET

 & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % £

1123 Day2Stay Project 53,200 -52,130 1,070 11,544 -17,800 -6,256 15,680 0 15,680 43,464

881

-8,354 

One claim completed, second claim 

due by end of financial year - dark 

sky-related partnership.

1124 Culturescape - EU-funded Project 51,960 -51,960 0 7,182 -34,371 -27,189 0 0 0 34,080
n/a

27,189

Project administrator post vacant.  

EU-funding for two-year project.

1131 Tourism Publications 3,000 -3,000 0 0 -2,253 -2,253 0 0 0 2,250 n/a 2,253
1132 Sustainable Tourism Projects 1,930 0 1,930 1,001 -80 921 0 0 0 2,250 48 1,009

1134 Geopark Interreg Project 40,350 -40,350 0 44,087 32,156 76,243 8,077 0 8,077 15,129

n/a

-84,320 

Continued issues with website for 

grant claims - no project 

administrator or staff now in post.  

Finance team to support admin 

during wind-up of project.

1138 Destination Management 10,000 -10,000 0 5,000 0 5,000 5,000 0 5,000 -2,503 n/a -10,000 

1139 Tourism Visitor Management Projects (WG funded)28,730 0 28,730 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,549

0

28,730

Budget to be re-profiled into 20-21.  

Dog project work to be completed 

as part of a temporary post.  

Original postholder redeployed to 

Waterfalls country.

could remaining phase of project 

involve redeployment of existing 

staff in other teams or support 

other priorities?  

1140 Waterfalls Country Partnership Project 94,750 -40,000 54,750 30,084 0 30,084 1,800 0 1,800 27,576

58

22,866

Large scale HLF bid in preparation, 

regular team meetings being held 

to review progress.  Planned third 

party spend below target.

1141 Waterfalls Country Community Development 27,660 0 27,660 6,146 0 6,146 236 0 236 13,835
23

21,278

Project officer in post, development 

work underway.

1305 SDF Strategic Projects 267,411 0 267,411 97,802 0 97,802 161,918 0 161,918 150,003
97

7,691

Bulk of funds have been committed 

for the year.

1309 Volunteer Co-ordinator projects 1,650 0 1,650 9 0 9 0 0 0 1,233
1

1,641 Little spend to date

Volunteer co-ordinator to be 

advised of availalble funding.

1310 Social Inclusion Work 6,448 -6,448 0 2,328 -2,328 -1 0 0 0 -2,709 n/a 1
1313 Get Into the Beacons Project 35,792 -35,792 0 52,676 -10,319 42,358 137 0 137 -6,290 n/a -42,495 final claim awaiting payment

1314 Small Steps Project 25,580 0 25,580 18,032 0 18,032 0 0 0 19,188 70 7,548

1315 Place Plans Project 13,330 0 13,330 6,444 0 6,444 0 0 0 10,743
48

6,886

any unspent funds can be carried 

over.

HR due to review budget with ES 

for next financial year.

1316 Active Ageing Project (Sport Wales) 29,280 -28,480 800 26,941 -12,907 14,034 0 0 0 14,152 1,754 -13,234 project completed, claim pending

1400 Ecology Projects BMP - Bracken Management BW lead88,500 -88,500 0 85,560 -66,380 19,180 84,885 0 84,885 66,375 n/a -104,065 
1401 Ecology Projects BMP - Peatland Restoration RB lead15,190 -15,190 0 3,040 -2,064 976 0 0 0 0 n/a -976 
1402 Ecology Projects BMP - Payment for Ecosystem Services PS lead40,890 -40,890 0 7,903 -7,903 0 19,757 0 19,757 30,666 n/a -19,757 
1403 Ecology Projects BMP - Education Plan SW lead 1,660 -1,660 0 2,845 -970 1,875 1,270 0 1,270 1,245 n/a -3,145 
1404 Ecology Projects BMP - Ambassadors RT lead 5,340 -5,340 0 4,617 -2,687 1,930 539 0 539 0 n/a -2,469 
1405 Ecology Projects BMP - Investing in Skills  BW lead48,110 -48,110 0 13,634 0 13,634 0 0 0 25,611 n/a -13,634 
1406 Ecology Projects BMP - Rangers BW lead 85,000 -85,000 0 37,307 -16,849 20,458 0 0 0 63,750 n/a -20,458 
1407 Ecology Projects BMP - Programme Monitoring and Evaluation  BW lead21,200 -21,200 0 11,429 -7,441 3,988 11,162 0 11,162 15,900 n/a -15,150 
1408 Ecology Projects BMP - Public Relations SW lead 8,000 -8,000 0 0 0 0 100 0 100 4,500 n/a -100 
1409 Ecology Projects BMP - Project Administration BW lead48,420 -48,420 0 21,017 -19,004 2,013 600 0 600 36,425 n/a -2,613 

4404 Green Growth Revenue Element 8,500 0 8,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,500
0

8,500

Staff time to be charged to Green 

growth.

Total for Delivery - Revenue Projects 1,273,550 -771,215 502,335 625,749 -193,939 431,810 325,888 0 325,888 697,622
151

-255,363 

Countryside  - Natural Resources

1100 Wardens Management, Staff and Running Costs526,780 -31,830 494,950 418,989 -11,085 407,904 90,093 0 90,093 391,426

101

-3,047 

includes commitment for Warden's 

liveried vehicles.  Vehicle budget 

overspend for year.  Additional 

recharge due for vehicle used in 

Waterfalls area.

JH to review vehicle budgets for 

Warden service, next year budget 

to be revised.

1101 Wardens' Depot 42,210 0 42,210 34,065 -343 33,722 0 0 0 31,778 80 8,488
1108 Foel Deg Improvements 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000 0 30,000
1109 Access Officer 146,484 -60,774 85,710 64,448 -26,920 37,528 14,672 0 14,672 87,776 61 33,510

1110 Public Rights Of Way 87,640 -31,960 55,680 67,985 -10,106 57,878 1,008 0 1,008 62,271
106

-3,206 RoW funding billed in final quarter.

Discussion ongoing with sponsor 

WG officials on revising spend 

profile in 2020/21.  Outcome of 

staff costs audit awaited.

ES, BW and LM to review position 

after December claim completed by 

LM.

P
age 22



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2019/20

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget

Budget 

spent

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES QUERIES TO BUDGET HOLDER

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET

 & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % £

1200 Countryside Manager 101,210 0 101,210 82,590 -2,500 80,090 5,662 0 5,662 77,844

85

15,458

funding of spend on digitisation to 

be realllocated to additional 

pressures capital grant received.

1220 Ecology 127,330 -5,750 121,580 90,315 -3,000 87,315 0 0 0 89,169 72 34,265

Total for Countryside  - Natural 

Resources 1,061,654 -130,314 931,340 758,392 -53,954 704,437 111,435 0 111,435 770,264
88

115,468

Countryside - Sustainable 
1105 Geopark Development Officer 47,160 0 47,160 32,000 -450 31,549 0 0 0 35,876 67 15,611
1120 Sustainable Tourism 94,500 -21,000 73,500 77,502 -16,906 60,595 1,752 0 1,752 71,775 85 11,153
1300 Community Development 150,130 -200 149,930 110,376 -267 110,109 300 0 300 112,811 74 39,521

Total for Countryside - Sustainable 

Development 291,790 -21,200 270,590 219,878 -17,623 202,253 2,052 0 2,052 220,462
76

66,285

Countryside - Public Engagement
4000 Commercial Manager 53,810 -13,500 40,310 36,935 -13,493 23,442 0 0 0 35,285 58 16,868
4103 Retail Stock Management 10,960 -5,150 5,810 9,465 -2,207 7,258 0 0 0 4,357 125 -1,448 
4104 Abergavenny Information Centre 33,230 -31,100 2,130 24,567 -29,103 -4,536 0 0 0 -3,827 -213 6,666
4107 Online Shop 3,580 -5,790 -2,210 3,003 -4,623 -1,620 0 0 0 -1,928 73 -590 

4108 Waterfalls Car Parks 107,274 -101,350 5,924 88,897 -95,137 -6,240 7,215 0 7,215 -18,073 

16

4,949

Income has exceeded budget, 

Capital funds available for card-

only car park machines.

Site management to consider use 

of income to improve staff and 

visitor facilities/safety.   

4200 National Park Visitor Centre 175,720 -179,359 -3,639 145,663 -142,506 3,157 11,581 0 11,581 2,598

-405 

-18,377 

Potential loss re outstanding debtor 

will increase spend - no progress 

on recovery.  

status of debt will need to be 

confirmed by the end of the 

financial year.

4210 Craig Y Nos Country Park 81,810 -57,680 24,130 63,996 -43,245 20,751 2,300 0 2,300 17,562 96 1,079
4400 Public Engagement 353,090 -51,750 301,340 228,948 -79,336 149,611 10,452 0 10,452 225,972 53 141,277 Budget income exceeded. SW to revise budget.

Total for Countryside - Public 

Engagement 819,474 -445,679 373,795 601,474 -409,650 191,823 31,548 0 31,548 261,946
60

150,424

TOTAL DELIVERY CORE 2,172,918 -597,193 1,575,725 1,579,744 -481,227 1,098,513 145,035 0 145,035 1,252,672 79 332,177

Planning and Heritage

1205 Building Conservation 52,320 0 52,320 32,273 0 32,273 12,095 0 12,095 44,714 85 7,952

spend exceeds staff budget, 

replaces some of provision for 

external services.   Gen H&C 

budget overspent due to 

unbudgeted grant payment

TN and ES to review planning 

budgets for 2020 onwards.

1225 Archaeology 48,020 0 48,020 32,802 0 32,802 6,142 0 6,142 37,375
81

9,076

order in place for farmstead 

assessment.

3000 Planning and Heritage Departmental management61,580 0 61,580 46,310 0 46,310 0 0 0 46,305 75 15,270
3100 Strategy, Policy And Heritage 142,750 0 142,750 111,896 0 111,896 0 0 0 107,703 78 30,854
3121 Minerals 2,100 0 2,100 0 0 0 2,000 0 2,000 1,575 95 100

3200 Development Control 352,020 -215,000 137,020 280,368 -153,676 126,691 1,250 0 1,250 108,851

93

9,079

spend on subscriptions and 

general services exceed budget, 

staffing budget to be reviewed. TN and ES to review budget

3201 Enforcement 136,140 0 136,140 102,514 -200 102,314 0 0 0 102,484 75 33,826

3202 Planning Administration & Support 161,010 -10,000 151,010 116,127 -5,816 110,311 1,280 0 1,280 113,558
74

39,419

PCC witholding payment for 

Search Fees.

TN and ES to consider further 

action with JP

3203 Tree Consultancy 10,000 0 10,000 2,600 0 2,600 0 0 0 7,497 26 7,400

Total for Planning and Heritage 965,940 -225,000 740,940 724,890 -159,692 565,197 22,767 0 22,767 570,062 79 152,976

Planning Revenue projects
3102 Local Development Plan 98,240 0 98,240 56,100 0 56,100 10,046 0 10,046 60,655 67 32,094
3204 Section 106 Receipts and Payments 0 0 0 0 -145,414 -145,414 0 0 0 0 n/a 145,414

Total for Planning Revenue projects 98,240 0 98,240 56,100 -145,414 -89,314 10,046 0 10,046 60,655
-81 

177,508

Capital Projects

P
age 23



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2019/20

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget

Budget 

spent

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES QUERIES TO BUDGET HOLDER

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET

 & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % £

1112 Gunpowder Works HLF project 187,556 -208,691 -21,135 142,054 -145,113 -3,058 44,690 0 44,690 6,015 -197 -62,767 project officer contract has finished.  

remaining project elements and 

outstanding access issue to be 

resolved by Heritage team and 

Legal.  Final claim required with 

assistance of Finance team.

1800 Wardens Capital Improvement Projects 95,810 -60,510 35,300 15,686 -85,695 -70,009 2,145 0 2,145 24,480 -192 103,164 Project spend outstanding JH, PS, Es to review budgets.

1801 Coedydd Nedd  y Mellte SAC 22,733 0 22,733 0 0 0 12,048 0 12,048 22,733
53

10,685

planned spend in waterfalls area 

under way.

1802 Green Growth Fund 69,170 0 69,170 128,581 0 128,581 0 0 0 69,170 186 -59,411 

1803 Solar Panel installation project 85,660 0 85,660 37,250 0 37,250 831 0 831 85,660
44

47,579

Remaining project element at MTC 

to be completed.

1804 Access and upland improvement Projects 360,000 -230,000 130,000 130,780 -56,260 74,520 44,092 0 44,092 155,000

91

11,388

includes additional autumn 2019 

WG funding for work on Ffawddog.  

Grant received Jan 2020.

1805 EV Charging Points and 2019 EV purchase 7,576 0 7,576 6,515 0 6,515 10,154 0 10,154 7,576

220

-9,093 

additional funding to be applied 

from 2019 pressures WG grant 

receipt.  Additional charge points 

ordered.

1807 Miles without Stiles, Wheelchair provision 30,000 0 30,000 13,776 0 13,776 0 0 0 30,000 46 16,224

1810 Wales Way Infrastructure and interpretation 122,320 -100,000 22,320 88,986 -65,964 23,022 53,879 0 53,879 122,320

345

-54,581 

project to be completed by March 

2020.  Additional funding received 

for some elements

1811 Waterfalls Country Partnership Project - CAPITAL75,000 0 75,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,998

0

75,000 project still in development.

waterfalls steering goup to review 

and possibly re-profile budget into 

20/21

4801 Geopark Centre project - Craig y nos CP 36,170 0 36,170 10,088 0 10,088 24,405 0 24,405 36,710 95 1,677
5304 Appropriations to/from Capital Grants Unapplied and Capital Receipts0 -446,139 -446,139 0 0 0 0 0 0 -91,933 0 -446,139 

Total for Capital Projects 1,091,995 -1,045,340 46,655 573,716 -353,032 220,685 192,244 0 192,244 498,729 885 -366,274 

OTHER

5340 Interest received 0 -4,800 -4,800 0 -19,979 -19,979 0 0 0 -3,600 
416

15,179

increase in interest earned from 

substantial balances. budget to be revised

5205 Green energy generation 0 -30,000 -30,000 426 -6,337 -5,911 183 0 183 -22,500 

19

-24,272 

Unlikely that this target will be 

reached as hydro generation is not 

performing as anticipated.  budget to be revised

5299 Provisions and contingencies. 62,000 0 62,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 63,528

0

62,000

provision for end of projects 

termination costs, plus general 

inflation.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO/FROM 

EARMARKED RESERVES

5302 Appropriations Account Exp 0 13,000 13,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,000

5302 Appropriations Account Inc 0 -447,885 -447,885 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

-447,885 

planned use of reserved funding - 

mainly WG grants to fund project 

spend.

TOTAL - OTHER 62,000 -469,685 -407,685 426 -26,316 -25,890 183 0 183 37,428 435 -381,978 

2100 GRAND TOTAL 7,159,231 -3,207,925 3,951,306 4,617,687 -1,436,769 3,180,915 878,589 0 878,589 4,159,522 103 -108,198 

FUNDING

5300 Transfers from General Reserves 0 -182,793 -182,793 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -182,793 

5300 Transfers from Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

5300

Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP 

Grant (WG) 0 -942,037 -942,037 0 -760,459 -760,459 0 0 0 -706,530 
81

-181,578 

5300

Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP 

Grant (WG) 0 -2,826,476 -2,826,476 0 -2,115,000 -2,115,000 0 0 0 -2,119,857 75 -711,476 

5300 National Park Grant (Revenue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

Total Funding & Transfers 0 -3,951,306 -3,951,306 0 -2,875,459 -2,875,459 0 0 0 -2,826,387 73 -1,075,847 

NET BUDGET #REF! #REF! 0 #REF! #REF! 305,456 #REF! #REF! #REF! 1,333,135 n/a #REF!

P
age 24



2017/18 

Actual

2018/19 

Actual

2019/20 to 

date

Project Title 
Total Project 

Funds          £
CODE

Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE
BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Llyn y Fan Fach Access CAPITAL 158,400 1800 JH
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

No spend in 2019/20 

to date - review may 

be needed.

Update from PS 3/9/18: JH awaiting

project development by DCWW on

disabled access. Site visits for this

completed with LAF reps. Car park

improvements will follow after this.

Planning permission and consents

pending. proposal for temporary

Warden (separately funded) and poss onsite 

volunteers. Budget updated to re-profile into 

19/20. 

71,860 9,529 0

Waun Fignen Felen - partnership 

agreement CAPITAL
50,000 1800 JH

L&B; reducing land-based carbon emissions 

and restoring upland habitats

No spend in 2019/20 

to date - review may 

be needed.

Update from PS 3/9/18:  Staff costs now 

included in this project.  £3450 on order.  

Further spend expected but not all in 

current year. Plan to spend 20k on heather 

mgts and charge £5k for warden 

4,350 6,966 2,406    

Wales Way CAPITAL 199,000 1810 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access 

to the countryside

quarterly profile 

needs to be updated 

additional funding received re Llangorse 

facilities - PCC  and community groups 

contributing.  Asset will be transferred to 

community.  Commitments for £56303 in 

place.   Art work and marker projects in 

hand, procurement well advance, planning 

consent process ongoing.

0 18261 51,372

DECARBONISATION CAPITAL GREEN 

GROWTH AND ELECTRIC VEHICLE 

PURCHASE

Green Energy 455,616 1802 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, 

vehicle elements of 

budget delivered, 

strategic approach to 

Visitor centre to be 

determined - original 

strategy not 

approved by NPA.

Project under development - budget 

subject to final proposal to Authority, 

via SDT Purchase of two pool EV's 

completed.  Additional EV authorised.  

Additional EV funding of £70k to be 

added to this code.  2 further vehicles 

purchased - to enable revenue savings 

in the Pool vehicle budget.

0 0 128,581

Solar panels 114,384 1803 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, 
Budget revision in 

progress for re-

profiled project and 

additional energy 

saving measures

Mountain Centre Solar project under 

way, delayed by planning requirement 

for bat survey.

0 38900 37,250

BB Green Growth Fund   REVENUE 75,000 4404 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, 
project development 

- T&F group to 

conclude review and 

report.  Project plan 

to be drafted.  

Budget revision 

pending for EV

staff time only in current budget, to be 

part applied to Volunteers' EV 
0 0 0

Black Mountains Partnership REVENUE 989,155
1401  - 

1409
BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 

objective=By focusing on landscapes and 

biodiversity, particularly through ecosystems 

management, the Authority is contributing 

directly to a more ‘Resilient Wales’.  2. The 

National Park’s landscapes and biodiversity 

will benefit from broad-scale targeted and 

promoted conservation projects. Goals & 

Objectives: Biodiversity will be conserved and 

enhanced through effective partnership, 

facilitation, practical action and the Planning 

function

revised profile to be 

issued to WG when 

December claim is 

completed

. Outstanding payments made.  Q1 

claim has been approved and received.  

ready to submit next claim. Rangers 

employed. Brief out for bracken ground 

truthing. Stipend programme up and 

running.  Second year of bracken 

treatments complete, issues arising re 

deadline to claim specific funds by 

March 2020 - may affect project 

delivery and finances.  Latest estimate 

is impact on £20k potential spend not 

deliverable.

143,044 357,601 146,577

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte - Waterfalls 

CAPITAL
28,000 1801 JH

Landscape and Biodiversity; SED; maintain 

and improve access to the countryside

some highways work commissioned from 

Powys CC by JL -12048 on order.  Plan for 

project to be combined with Waterfalls 

Country Partnership project and new 

funding.

0 5267 0

Condition RoW Database REVENUE 10,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

RoW Officer to 

update

App now delivered and invoice 

received.  Additional work to complete 

project planned and budgeted for next 

FY.  EJ May 2019:  £2,100 carried 

forwards into 2019/20.

2405 5500 0

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spendSCORECARD

P
age 25



2017/18 

Actual

2018/19 

Actual

2019/20 to 

date

Project Title 
Total Project 

Funds          £
CODE

Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE
BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spendSCORECARD

ROWIP Review REVENUE 40,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside; publish 

the review of the ROWIP

  EJ May 2019:  £1,210 carried forward into 

2019/20 for translation plus staff time 

£1,960.  

7812 29018 0

Visitor Management Programme officer 

- re-purposed to Dog Project .REVENUE
80,000 1139 RT

Biodiversity and Landscape,Resilient 

Communities, SED; improve access to the 

countryside

revise budget to next 

fy

to be re-purposed to dog project, 

replaced by dedicated waterfalls 

partnership project with new cost centre 

with ENRAW funding,

11972 36125 0

UNESCO Fforest Fawr  Geopark Centre 

@ Craig-y-nos CP CAPITAL
36,710 4801 RT

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access 

to the countryside
orders raised for £24k 0 3290 10,088

Strategic approach to Invasive Non 

Native Species Pilot REVENUE
100,000 1114 BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 

objective=By focusing on landscapes and 

biodiversity, particularly through ecosystems 

management, the Authority is contributing 

directly to a more ‘Resilient Wales’.  2. The 

National Park’s landscapes and biodiversity 

will benefit from broad-scale targeted and 

promoted conservation projects. Corporate 

Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity will be 

conserved and enhanced through effective 

partnership, facilitation, practical action and 

the Planning function

Update budget to 

carry funding 

forward to 20/21

posts to be extended into 20/21 utilising 

funds for knotweed contractors
1000 30233 42,322

Gunpowder Works REVENUE AND 

CAPITAL
800,453 1112 RC

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access 

to the countryside

negotiations ongoing 

in relation to 

property issue, 

virtual tour delivery

  Access issue may delay delivery of 

the interp element of the project.  

Funder has been consulted.  Q4 claim 

pending, digital tour and some works 

outstanding, project officer contract 

completed.

101148 516632 128,054

Atlantic Geoparks REVENUE 131,300 1134 RT
Resilient Communities, SED; improve access 

to the countryside

 EU funders to 

progress payment 

and address issues 

with claims website.

no grant received to date due to tech 

issues with funder.  £70k owed to the 

project, claim made but payment not 

yet received.  Project staff contracts 

ended but some spend still to take 

place.

32245 47860 42,763

EV Charging Points  REVENUE AND 

CAPITAL
30,000 1805 WL

Reducing land-based carbon emissions, SED; 

improve access to the countryside

budget revision for 

unspend funds
COMPLETED 0 17424 6,515

Place Plan implementation WG  

REVENUE
30,000 1315 CP

Heritage, Biodiversity and Landscape,Resilient 

Communities, SED; improve access to the 

countryside

Project work underway, unspent 

element and work with communities will 

continue into 20/21

0 3681 6,444

Powys Teaching Health Board - Small 

Steps REVENUE
40,000 1314 CP

Resilient Communities, SED; improve access 

to the countryside
Project work underway. 0 8359 18,031

Llangasty and Caeau Ty Mawr site Mgt 

REVENUE
15,000 1102 RP/JH Landscape and Biodiversity 1048 on order 0 6985 3,923

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchairs 

CAPITAL
30,000 1807 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; Develop the 

Miles Without Stiles programme; maintain 

and improve access to the countryside

order raised for £7.6k 0 0 13,776

Carn Pica Footpath Restoration CAPITAL 130,000 1804 RB

Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside; reduce 

land-based carbon emissions and restoring 

upland habitats

.  PS June 2019:  all programmed for 

completion during 2019.  
0 0 84,749

RoW Improvements Wardens CAPITAL 20,000 1800 JH
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside
0 15125 13,280

NP Interpretation (?) and Education 

Space at National Park Visitor Centre 

CAPITAL

55,000 1808 SW
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

strategic approach to 

visitor centre to be 

determined.

project work is subject to agreement of 

overall strategy.
0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Infrastructure (being 

run jointly with Coedydd Nedd y Mellte 

work), Visitor Management in Waterfall 

Country CAPITAL

186,900 1811 JL
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

  Further update 13-12-18 - 1) Gwaun Hepste car park is 

taking priority from the 1801 and 1809 budgets, 2) 

Traffic management -  enactment of plans for Comin y 

Rhos and Ystradfellte lay-bys etc.  Works at Cwm Porth 

and Hendre Bolon footpaths are priorities.  WG funding  

added

0 0 0

Waterfalls Country Visitor Management-

REVENUE
400,000

1140, 

1141
JL

BUDGET SET UP, STAFF IN POST, OTHER 

SPEND IN DEVELOPMENT
36,229

Heritage in Place Grant Scheme 

CAPITAL
50,000 3205 TN Heritage

budget to be 

established

uncertainty re timing of spend but not 

anticipated to be until later in 2019/20. 
0 0 0

WG Additional Support for BMLUP - 

Machinery and Project Management, 

REVENUE, CAPITAL

75,000
1800, 

1220
BW

L&B; Reducing land based carbon emissions 

and restoring upland habitats
0 59693 6,948

P
age 26



2017/18 

Actual

2018/19 

Actual

2019/20 to 

date

Project Title 
Total Project 

Funds          £
CODE

Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE
BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spendSCORECARD

Nature Recovery Action Plan 

Implementation - REVENUE
50,000 1114 BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 

objective=By focusing on landscapes and 

biodiversity, esp ecosystems management, 

the Authority contributes to a more ‘Resilient 

Wales’. 2.  landscapes and biodiversity will 

benefit from broad-scale targeted and 

promoted conservation projects. Corporate 

Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity will be 

conserved and enhanced through effective 

partnership, facilitation, practical action and 

the Planning function

Budget to be set up

To be used for revenue element of NRAP 

delivery, detailed work programme 

developed by ecology team, additional 

funding streams are available which need 

to be utilised if possible.

0 0 0

Nature Recovery Action Plan 

Implementation - CAPITAL
116,000

1114, 

1813
BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 

objective=By focusing on landscapes and 

biodiversity, esp ecosystems management, 

the Authority contributes to a more ‘Resilient 

Wales’. 2.  landscapes and biodiversity will 

benefit from broad-scale targeted and 

promoted conservation projects. Corporate 

Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity will be 

conserved and enhanced through effective 

partnership, facilitation, practical action and 

the Planning function

budget for WG 

funding to be set up 

in Ecology Projects

 Existing numbers do not include 

predictions from ENRAW grant if successful; 

only includes £66,000 currently available 

from WG underspend and NG reserve 

(BW)budget set up for publication and 

launch,  on 1114

0 0 5,494

Waun Rydd Peatland Restoration 

CAPITAL
35,000 1804 RB

L&B; Reducing land based carbon emissions 

and restoring upland habitats
0 0 36,260

IT Upgrading CAPITAL 180,000 1812 PF
budget to be 

established in ledger

project plan set up - elements of delivery 

are under way.
0

Llanthony Toilets CAPITAL 30,000 ???? JH
budget to be 

established

project will take some time to establish - 

objectives to be confirmed - spend must be 

commited by end March 2020.

0 0 0

NPVC Natural Play Area Year 1 CAPITAL 75,000 4800 WL project to be agreed 

project will take some time to establish - 

objectives to be confirmed.  spend must be 

commited by end March 2020.

0 0 0

Rights of Way Improvements 2019/20 

Ffawddog Ridge
170,000 1804 RB project spend underway 0 0 0

Meithrin Mynydd Equipment 16,000 1800 JH project to be agreed 

originally for cattle crush but alternatives 

being discussed with Graziers due to 

practical issues with use of mobile crush.   

spend must be commited by end March 

2020.

0 0 0

TOTAL 5,001,918 375,836 1,216,449 821,062

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



S106

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD  

31/3/19

£ £ £

S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks ZAA Enviroparks (Hirwaun) Limited 0.00

Footpath improvement path 15 plus 

interpretation £10,000 payable to BBNPA 

Wardens/Interpretation - to be fully spent 

by 6/11/2020

0.00

Planning condition monitoring fee £12,000 

payable to BBNPA Enforcement - to be 

fully spent by 6/11/2020

800.00 BBNPA internal

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee 

£11,750 payable to BBNPA Ecologist  - to 

be fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00

ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 800.00 800.00

TOTAL S106 (OTHER) BALANCE AT 31/3/19 -29,251.12

S106

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD  

31/3/19

£ £ £

S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks ZAA Enviroparks (Hirwaun) Limited 0.00

Footpath improvement path 15 plus 

interpretation £10,000 payable to BBNPA 

Wardens/Interpretation - to be fully spent 

by 6/11/2020

0.00

Planning condition monitoring fee £12,000 

payable to BBNPA Enforcement - to be 

fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00 BBNPA internal

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee 

£11,750 payable to BBNPA Ecologist  - to 

be fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00

ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL S106 (OTHER) AT END OF QUARTER -29,251.12

2018/19 S106 - OTHER

2019/20 S106 - OTHER

P
age 29



2018/19 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 

31/3/19

£ £ £

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd 

Barn, O/C ZAI

E Morgan (four further annual 

instalments payable) -20,000.00

Affordable Housing contribution  - 

following Wales Audit Advice, the further 

four instalments due have been accrued 

into the 2018/19 accounts and 

corresponding short and long-term 

debtors included in the balance sheet for 

the payments of £19360 due in each of 

the next four years. 0.00 -20,000.00

18/15843/FUL Pentwyncoch Ganol ZAJ G J Philpott -83,172.00

Affordable Housing contribution - no 

conditions deemed to be attached. 0.00 -83,172.00

ANNUAL TOTAL -103,172.00 0.00 -103,172.00 

TOTAL Affordable Housing balance at 31/3/19 -397,434.60 

2019/20 AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 

31/12/19

£ £ £

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd 

Barn, O/C ZAI E Morgan -58,380.00 Affordable Housing contribution 0.00 -58,380.00

18/16678/FUL Studio at Castle 

Cottage ZAK O Carthew -64,844.00 Affordable Housing contribution 0.00 -64,844.00

17/14713/FUL 1 Dwelling at St John's Church LIBANUSZAL Mr S J Warrell & Mrs D A Warrell -22,190.00 Affordable Housing contribution 0.00 -22,190.00

ANNUAL TOTAL TO DATE -145,414.00 0.00 -145,414.00 

TOTAL Affordable Housing balance at 30/6/19 -542,848.60 

P
age 30



 

 

 

   

Parc Cathays • Cathays Park 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  
Ffôn  * Tel 0300 0256306 

Simon.pickering@wales.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Julian Atkins 
Prif Weithredwr 
Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 
Plas y Ffynnon 
Ffordd Cambrian 
Aberhonddu 
LD3 7HP 

 

24 Hydref 2019 
 
 

Annwyl Julian, 
 
Dyfarnu Cymorth Grant Ychwanegol i Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 
 
Mae'r llythyr hwn yn dilyn cynnig a gyflwynwyd gan eich awdurdod i Lywodraeth Cymru am 
grant ychwanegol ar gyfer pwysau ariannol ym mlwyddyn ariannol 2019/20. 
 
Gallaf gadarnhau fod Gweinidogion Cymru, ar ôl ystyried y cais hwn, yn medru cynyddu’r Cyllid 
a ddyfernir o £611,000 yn fwy o gyllid cyfalaf, sef cyfanswm o £611,000 o Gyllid ychwanegol 
ichi ar gyfer 2019/20. Dylid defnyddio’r cyllid ychwanegol hwn ar gyfer y prosiectau a 
amlinellwyd yn Atodlen 1. 
 
Gwneir y dyfarniad o dan awdurdod y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol. Y sail statudol 
ar gyfer y cyllid hwn yw adrannau 60, 70 a 71 (1) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru (GOWA) 2006. 
 
Mae’r Cyllid ychwanegol yn ddarostyngedig i'r telerau a'r amodau a nodwyd yn y llythyr dyfarnu 
Cyllid gwreiddiol ar gyfer 2018-19. Er mwyn i ni fedru prosesu’r taliad, a wnewch chi 
gadarnhau’n ysgrifenedig eich bod yn derbyn y cyllid ychwanegol hwn.  
 
Os byddwch yn cytuno i fynd ymlaen â hwy bydd y prosiectau ychwanegol yn cael eu monitro 
gan swyddogion Tirweddau a Hamdden Awyr Agored wrth ochr chyllid a dderbyniwyd gan yr 
Awdurdod ar gyfer prosiectau ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru mewn blynyddoedd 
blaenorol. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 
 

 
 
 
Arwyddwyd gan Simon Pickering  
o dan awdurdod y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol

Page 31



 

 

 

   

Parc Cathays • Cathays Park 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  
Ffôn  * Tel 0300 0256306 

Simon.pickering@wales.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Julian Atkins 
Chief Executive 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Plas y Ffynnon 
Cambrian Way 
Brecon 
LD3 7HP 
 

24 October 2019 
 
 

 
Dear Julian, 
 
Award of Additional Grant-in-Aid for the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  
 
This letter follows a proposal submitted by your authority for additional grant from the Welsh 
Government for unfunded pressures in financial year 2019/20. 
 

I can confirm that the Welsh Ministers, having considered this request, are able to increase the 
Funding awarded by a further £611,000 capital, resulting in a £611,000 increase to your 
Funding for 2019/20. This additional funding should be utilised for the projects outlined at 
Schedule 1.  

The award is made under the authority of the Deputy Minister for Housing and Local 
Government. The statutory basis for this Funding is sections 60, 70 and 71(1) of the 
Government of Wales Act (GOWA) 2006. 

 
The increased Funding is subject to the terms and conditions provided in the original Funding 
award letter for 2018-19. Please confirm in writing by return that the Authority accepts this offer 
of funding in order for us to process the payment.  
 
The additional projects, if you agree to proceed with them, will be monitored by Landscapes and 
Outdoor Recreation officials alongside funding received by the Authority from Welsh 
Government in previous years for additional projects. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Signed by Simon Pickering  
under authority of the Deputy Minister for Housing and Local Government. 
 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

SCHEDULE 1 

The Purposes 

 

Pwrpas y Cyllid yw i gwblhau’r prosiectau canlynol: 

Dylech anelu i gychwyn a chwblhau’r prosiectau canlynol yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 

2019-20. Lle nad yw’n bosibl i gwblhau yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol, rhaid bod 

prosiectau wedi cychwyn, a’r oedi wedi’i esbonio inni o flaen llaw: 

 

 

The purpose of this Funding is to complete the following projects: 

You should aim to commence and complete the following projects within financial year 

2019-20. Where it is not possible to complete within the financial year, projects must 

have been commenced, and the delay explained with due notice: 

 

 
Project Cost (£) 

Digital Archiving 20,000 

Electric Vehicles 70,000 

IT Upgrades 180,000 

Llanthony Toilets 30,000 

Meithrin Mynydd 16,000 

National Park Visitor Centre Natural Play Area Phase 1 75,000 

Nature Recovery Action Plan 50,000 

Rights of Way improvements 170,000 

  

 
Total: £611,000 

 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Powys Pension Fund Triennial Valuation 2019

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

Date 31 January 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Powys Pension Fund Triennial Valuation 2019

Contact Details Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To advise Members of the outcome of the valuation and 
budgetary implications.

Single Integrated 
Assessment

n/a

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1  Powys Pension Fund explanatory report

Enclosure 2 Powys Pension fund triennial valuation 
results schedule

Public Interest Test n/a

Recommendation(s) a)  That the contents of the enclosed reports be 
accepted by the Committee

1.1 Background
The triennial revaluation of the Powys Pension fund, of which the Authority is an admitted 
employer, took place in 2019.  The results were reported at the annual employers’ meeting of 
the Fund members in December.  The outcome of the valuation is an assessment of the current 
value of the assets of the Fund as well as its liabilities to current and former employees.  This 
determines whether the fund is in surplus or deficit, and the contribution rate required from 
the Employer.

1.2 Proposals
The enclosures provide further information on the valuation and the outcome, which is 
essentially that the BBNPA element of the fund is now fully funded and contribution rates can 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


be reduced as a result for the next three years.  The new contribution rate is 20.9% of 
pensionable salaries, down from 22.7% (including a capital contribution element).

1.3 Implications

The reduction will generate a saving of approximately £50,000 annually.  This has been taken 
into account in the production of the draft estimates which will be submitted to the Authority 
in February.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

a)  That the contents of the enclosed reports be accepted by the Committee

Page 36



  
 

 

 

 

 
Copyright © 2019 Aon Hewitt Limited. All rights reserved. 
aon.com 
Aon Hewitt Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810 
Registered office: 
The Aon Centre | The Leadenhall Building | 122 Leadenhall Street | London | EC3V 4AN 
This report and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is 
solely for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent 
no part of this report should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else 
and, in providing this report, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other 
purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report. 

 

 

Information to accompany Individual 
Employer Results Schedule 
 

Prepared for Powys County Council, as Administering Authority to the 
Powys County Council Pension Fund ("the Fund") 

Prepared by Aon Hewitt Limited 

Date November 2019 
 

Page 37



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 1

 

2019 Valuation: Individual Employer Results Schedule 
This document has been prepared for the Administering Authority to supplement the 
information provided in the Individual Employer Results Schedule (the Schedule) showing 
the indicative valuation results as at 31 March 2019 for participating employers in the Fund.   

Purpose of the valuation 

The overriding purpose of the valuation is to set out a funding (or contribution) plan to secure the 
solvency and long-term cost efficiency of the Fund as required by the LGPS Regulations. In practice 
this means calculating the funding position and setting out the contributions payable of each individual 
employer (or group of employers) (hereby referred to as the "Employer") in the Fund. The 2019 
valuation leads to contributions being certified for employers over the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2023.   

The principles which have been applied are set out in the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), which is 
currently being consulted on. 

Employer contributions 

The Schedule shows the contributions being paid 
by the Employer over 2019/20. The 2019 
valuation determines contributions payable from 1 
April 2020 to 31 March 2023.  

The Employer contributions calculated at the 2019 
valuation are shown in the Employer 
Contributions table.   

How the future service (or primary) 
contribution rate is calculated depends on 
whether the Employer admits new members to 
the Fund (shown as "open" in the Employer 
Information section) or whether no new members 
are admitted ("closed"). The rate also depends 
on the profile of the Employer's members, in 
particular their average age – the older the 
employee members, the shorter the period to 
retirement over which investment returns can be 
earned, and therefore the higher the future 
service rate. 

The change in the future service rate since the 
last valuation as at 31 March 2016 (or date of 
commencement, if later) will be due to: 

 changes in the assumptions used to value the 
liabilities; and 

 changes to the employer's membership.  

For example, if the employees are now older on 
average, the future service rate will have 
increased (ignoring the effect of other changes). 

In addition, an allowance has been made for 
uncertainties relating to the McCloud Judgement 
and Cost Cap Mechanism equal to 1.1% of pay. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Future service rate”  
the cost to the Employer (as a % 
of pay) of benefits employee 
members will earn in future based 
on the funding assumptions, also 
called the primary contribution 
rate. It allows for expenses and 
expected member contributions.

An increase in the real discount rate 
(discount rate less CPI assumption) 
reduces the future service rate, and 
vice versa. 

Closed employer rates are generally 
higher than open employer rates 
because they anticipate the ageing of a 
closed workforce.  

Further information on McCloud/cost 
cap is set out in Appendix 1.  

Page 38



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 2

 

Where the funding position shows a shortfall or 
surplus, employer contributions will be adjusted to 
target a 100% funding level (i.e. no surplus or 
shortfall, with assets equal to liabilities). The 
period over which any surplus or shortfall is 
spread is called the Recovery Period. 

Where there is a shortfall, the total contributions 
will generally consist of the future service rate and 
additional monetary amounts payable.  

Where there is a surplus, the total contributions 
may be less than the future service rate, if the 
surplus is being used to subsidise employer 
contributions. Where a surplus is being removed 
this will be shown as a secondary contribution 
reduction, expressed as a percentage of pay. 

The Proposed contributions schedule 2020-2023  
comprises: 

- a % of pay rate plus  

- additional monetary amounts (if needed). 

Balance sheet ("liabilities") 

The Administering Authority's funding objective for 
each employer is to hold assets which are at least 
equal to the past service liabilities i.e. to meet 
the funding target. The funding target depends on 
the circumstances of the employer including the 
Administering Authority's view of the employer 
covenant and what would happen to the 
Employer's liabilities should it leave the Fund. 

In order to calculate the past service liabilities and 
the cost to employers of benefits accruing to their 
members, the benefits paid out by the Fund are 
estimated for each year into the future using 
assumptions about future experience.  The key 
financial assumptions are summarised in the 
Schedule. 

Balance sheet ("assets") 

Each employer's notional asset share is based on 
the employer's notional asset share calculated as 
part of the 2016 valuation (or the commencement 
date, if later), projected forward to the 2019 
valuation date allowing for: 

 Investment returns achieved by the Fund. 

 Contributions paid by the employer(s) and 
its/their members. 

 Other cashflows in respect of the employer's 
membership, e.g. pensions paid. 

 

Note that no balance sheet will be shown where 
the employer has a risk sharing arrangement in 
place with Powys County Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Liabilities”  
the present value of the benefits 
that will be paid from the Fund in 
the future, based on membership 
prior to the valuation date, also 
called the past service liabilities, 
calculated as set out in the FSS. 

Monetary contributions are expected 
to be paid throughout the recovery 
period, subject to review at future 
triennial valuations. They will increase 
each year in line with the pay increase 
assumption 

“Recovery period”  
the period over which any surplus 
or shortfall is to be eliminated. 
Different recovery periods apply to 
individual employers, as set out in 
the FSS.   

We refer to the notional allocation of 
Fund assets to the Employer because 
the Employer doesn't "own" the assets, 
they belong to the Fund (Administering 
Authority). 

Page 39



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 3

 

Balance sheet ("funding level") 

The funding position is the difference between the 
value of assets notionally allocated to the 
Employer and its funding target (liabilities). It is 
often expressed as a ratio of the assets to the 
liabilities, known as the funding level. 

The change in the funding position since the 
valuation as at 31 March 2016 (or commencement 
date if later) will be due to: 

 investment returns achieved by the Fund 
compared to the discount rate;  

 changes in the assumptions used to value the 
liabilities;  

 membership experience for the Employer's 
members in the Fund*; 

 contributions paid by the Employer compared 
to the cost of benefits earned by its employee 
members.   

*For example, if the employees' salaries have 
increased by less than assumed, the Employer's 
(pre-2014) liabilities will be lower than expected, 
improving the funding position.   

The Balance Sheet section in the Schedule shows 
the Employer's: 

- notional assets,  

- past service liabilities (or funding target)  

- the resulting funding level and  

- surplus or shortfall  

as at the valuation date of 31 March 2019.  

Please note that the 2016 valuation balance sheet 
shown in this schedule may be different to that 
provided at the 2016 valuation. The main reasons 
for this are: 

 The finalised 2016 valuation balance sheet 
being different to the initial figures provided in 
2016 due to adjustments made to ensure total 
notional assets of all employers in the Fund 
equal the total Fund assets – see the box in 
'Other points to note' for further information; 

 Any other employers in the Fund that have 
been 'subsumed' by the Employer since the 
previous valuation as these subsumed 
employers will be included in the 2016 
valuation figures; 

 Changes to the employers included in the 
group (if appropriate), as the 2016 valuation 
position allows for employers that are included 
in the group at the 2019 valuation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Funding level”  
the value of assets notionally 
allocated to the Employer divided 
by the Employer's past service 
liabilities, also called the funding 
ratio. 

Investment returns above the discount 
rate improve the funding position, and 
vice versa. 

An increase in the real discount rate 
(discount rate less CPI assumption) 
improves the funding position, and vice 
versa. 

“Surplus / (shortfall)”  
the value of assets notionally 
allocated to the Employer less the 
past service liabilities. If the 
assets exceed the liabilities there 
is a surplus; if they are less than 
the liabilities there is a shortfall. 

Page 40



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 4

 

Assumptions 

The Schedule shows the rate of price and salary 
inflation used to estimate future benefit payments. 

The estimated benefit payments are then 
'discounted back' to the valuation date using an 
agreed assumed rate of investment return / rate of 
interest known as the discount rate.  This is the 
key assumption which underpins the value of the 
liabilities. 

The demographic assumptions relate to the Fund 
membership, e.g. how many members will leave 
active membership before retirement and when; 
and how long members will live after retirement. 

The same demographic assumptions are adopted 
for all employers, although because they are age 
and gender specific they have a different effect for 
each employer to allow for the employer's 
membership profile. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Discount rate”  
The rate of interest / investment 
return used to place a present 
value on a future benefit 
payment. The discount rate 
adopted for the Employer is set 
out in the Schedule. 

Details of the demographic assumptions 
are set out in Appendix 2. 

Page 41



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 5

 

Other points to note 

In some cases employers may be permitted to 
phase in contribution changes in a number of 
steps as set out in the Funding Strategy 
Statement. The contribution rate after the 
stepping period is expected to be higher than had 
stepping not been used, to make up the 
underpayment over the stepping period. 

Further, future experience is uncertain so there is 
no guarantee that the certified contributions will 
be sufficient to ensure the funding target is met.  
Individual assumptions are made for the long-term 
and are unlikely to be borne out in each individual 
year.  This means that contributions from the next 
valuation could be higher or lower than those that 
will be certified at this valuation. 

The valuation results depend upon the accuracy 
of the data underlying the calculations. The 
Employer should check the data summary and let 
the Administering Authority know if it has any 
concerns. 

The past service contributions allow for interest on 
future payments in line with the discount rate. 
They also allow for interest on the surplus/shortfall 
between 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2020 and the 
difference between contributions payable and the 
future service cost over 2019/20. As a result you 
cannot simply divide the shortfall by the recovery 
period to estimate the pas service contributions 
payable. 

Additional contributions may be required in 
respect of any additional liabilities that arise under 
the provisions of Regulations 30, 31, 35 and 38 of 
the Regulations and Employers will be notified of 
such contributions separately by the 
Administering Authority. 

The results in the Schedule are indicative only 
and cannot be confirmed until the valuation is 
complete.  In particular, as the Fund is a multi-
employer scheme where there is no formal 
segregation of assets between employers, the 
value of the assets notionally allocated to the 
Employer may change if, following completion 
of the Actuary's calculations for all employers, 
adjustments need to be made to allow for new 
information or corrected data. Assuming there 
are no material changes to the Employer's 
results, the proposed contributions will 
remain unchanged but the funding position 
may be revised. 

 

Disclaimer 

This supplementary document has been released 
to the Employer for information only to help explain 
some of the terms used in the Individual Employer 
Results Schedule. It should not be used or relied 
upon by any person other than our client, the 
Administering Authority, nor used for any other 
purpose. There is no duty of care established 
toward, and Aon Hewitt Limited disclaims any 
responsibility or liability arising from, any person 
having access to this document either directly from 
the Employer, indirectly from a third party or 
through any other means. No recipients of the 
information are permitted to reproduce, distribute 
or communicate any part of this supplement to any 
other party or advisor.  

We neither warrant nor represent (either expressly 
or by implication) to any third party who receives 
this document that the information included is fair, 
accurate or complete, whether at the date of its 
preparation or at any other time. All third parties 
are hereby notified the supplement shall not be 
used as a substitute for any enquiries, procedures 
or advice which ought to be undertaken or sought 
by them. We do not accept any responsibility for 
any consequences arising from any third party 
seeking to rely on this supplement. 

No decisions should be taken on the basis of this 
information and nothing in this document removes 
the need for readers to take proper advice in 
relation to their specific circumstances. 

This is not formal actuarial advice, and is not 
covered by the scope of actuarial guidance TAS 
100 and 300. The Employer can contact us if it 
wants actuarial advice on funding its liabilities, 
although such advice would not be provided by the 
Administering Authority advisory team and would 
need to adhere to our conflict of interest policy. 

 

 

 

Page 42



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 6

 

Appendix 1: Other terms 
 

Active member 

A person who is employed by an employer 
participating in the Fund, and is paying (or is 
treated as paying) contributions to the Fund 
(includes certain members temporarily absent, 
e.g. due to family leave or sickness).  

Cost cap mechanism 

The mechanism introduced as part of the 
reforms of the public service schemes in 2015 
(2014 for the LGPS in England and Wales) 
intended to limit employers' exposure to rising 
pension costs from member-related 
experience (most financial risks, such as 
investment risks, fall outside of the cost cap 
process).  When the Government Actuary's 
Department carried out the Scheme valuation 
as at 31 March 2016 it found that costs had 
reduced and member benefits had to be 
improved/contributions reduced to bring the 
costs back in line with the cost cap.  A 
package of measures was agreed which were 
costed at 0.9% of pay (i.e. at additional cost to 
employers). However, following the judgement 
in the McCloud/Sargeant cases, the cost cap 
process is currently on hold.  It is expected 
that it will be revisited once the outcome of 
McCloud is known, at which point changes 
may be made (and backdated to 1 April 2019) 
which will add to employer costs.  If employer 
costs do increase, the required addition to 
individual employers' contribution rates could 
be higher or lower than 0.9% of pay depending 
on the circumstances. 

The Schedule shows the allowance made in 
the 2019 valuation for McCloud/cost cap within 
employer contributions.  Further information on 
the cost management process is available 
here: http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-
reform/cost-management 

Deferred member 

A former employee who has left active 
membership, but has not yet received any 
benefits from the Fund and is prospectively 
entitled to receive a deferred pension from 
his/her normal pension age. 

Dependant member 

A dependant of a previous employee who was 
a member of the Fund but who has died, 
where benefits are payable to a specified 
dependant under the LGPS regulations.    

Exit basis 

Where provided, this is an indicative figure 
illustrating the assets and liabilities of the 
Employer had it exited on the valuation date.  
It assumes that all active members became 
deferred on the valuation date. It should be 
noted that changes in market conditions since 
the valuation date could mean that a higher 
exit payment would be due if the Employer 
exited the Fund after the date of the valuation.  

McCloud Judgement 

A legal judgement relating to a member of the 
Judges' Pension Scheme who brought a claim 
of illegal age discrimination in relation to the 
transitional protections for members within 10 
years of pension age on 1 April 2012 which 
applied when the public service schemes were 
reformed.  The case was joined to a similar 
case (of Sargeant) in relation to the 
Firefighters' Scheme and the Court of Appeal 
found that the changes did constitute illegal 
age discrimination. Government was denied 
leave to appeal earlier this year and has 
acknowledged that the judgement should be 
considered to apply to all the public service 
schemes, including the LGPS.  It is not yet 
known what remedy will apply (i.e. how those 
not entitled to the underpin / better of both 
promise in the LGPS will be compensated) but 
it will lead to additional employer costs. The 
Scheme Advisory Board and MHCLG have 
indicated that they expect funds to consider 
these costs when setting employer 
contributions, see here: 
http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-
reform/mccloud-page 

As part of the actuarial valuation the Actuary 
has calculated the cost of applying the 
underpin on retirement to all members who 
were active as at 1 April 2014. 

Page 43



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 7

 

This leads to an average cost of 1.1% of pay 
(including both past and future service costs).  
As this is higher than the expected cost under 
the cost management process the total 
allowance for McCloud / Cost cap is 1.1% of 
pay. The same allowance has been made for 
all employers as agreed with the Administering 
Authority of the Fund. 

Ongoing funding target  

For the ongoing funding target used to set 
contributions to the Fund, the Administering 
Authority assumes indefinite investment in a 
broad range of assets of higher risk than risk 
free assets.  

Pensioner member 

A previous employee of the Employer who is a 
member of the Fund, and has retired and is 
now receiving pension benefits.   

Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

Salary  

Pensionable pay over the year 1 April 2018 to 
31 March 2019, as defined in the LGPS 
Regulations in relation to post-2014 
membership. 

Undecided member 

A previous employee of the Fund who has left 
employment but has yet to decide whether to 
take a transfer of benefits to another pension 
arrangement, or a refund of their contributions. 

Page 44



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 8

 

Appendix 2: Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Males Females 

Pre-retirement base 
mortality 

40% of SAPS* S2N tables 40% of SAPS S2N tables 

Post-retirement base 
mortality 

  

- Actives and deferreds 110% of S2N tables 95% of S2N tables 

- Contingents of current 
actives and deferreds

110% of S2N tables 105% of S2N tables 

- Pensioners 105% of S2N tables 90% of S2N tables 

- Dependants and 
contingents of current 
pensioners 

105% of S2N tables 100% of S2N tables 

Ill-health retirement 
base mortality 

85% of S2I tables 110% of S2I tables 

Improvements to 
mortality 

An allowance for improvements from the effective date of the base 
table to 2019 and for future improvements in line with the CMI 2018 
core projections with long-term improvement rate of 1.50% p.a. sk of 
7.5 and parameter A of 0.0. 

 * SAPS mortality tables are mortality tables based on data from self-
administered pension schemes. 
The Series 2 tables are based on data over the period 2004– 2011. 
S2N are tables in respect of normal health retirees,  
S2I are tables in respect of ill health retirees. 

Promotional salary 
increases 

Allowance for age-related promotional increases (see sample rates 
below). 

Withdrawals Allowance for withdrawals from service (see sample rates below). On 
withdrawal, members are assumed to leave with a deferred pension in 
the Fund. 

Retirement cash sum Each member is assumed to surrender pension on retirement, such 
that the total cash received is 70% of the permitted maximum. 

Family details Each man is assumed to be three years older than his wife/partner. 

80% of non-pensioners are assumed to be married or have a spouse, 
civil partner or co-habitee ('partner') at retirement or earlier death. 

80% of pensioners are assumed to be married or have a partner at 
age 65. 

No allowance for children's pensions.

Retirement due to ill-
health 

Allowance has been made for retirements due to ill-health (see below). 
Proportions assumed to fall into the different benefit tiers are: 

Tier 1  70% 

Tier 2  25% 

Tier 3 5%

Page 45



  
 

 
 

  
Information to accompany Individual Employer Results Schedule 9

 

Take up of 50:50 
scheme 

All members are assumed to remain in the scheme they are in at the 
date of the valuation. 

Retirement age 
 

Member group Assumed age at retirement

Group 1 and Group 2 members 
(fully and taper protected 

members)

Age 63 

Group 3 members 
(Rule of 85 age= 60)

Age 63 

Group 3 members 
(Rule of 85 age > 60)

Age 65 

Group 4 members 
(Joiners pre 1 April 2014) 

Age 65 

Group 4 members 
(Joiners post 31 March 2014)

State Pension Age 

Any part of a member's pension payable from a later age than the 
assumed retirement age will be reduced.

Sample rates 
The table below illustrates the allowances made for withdrawals from service and ill-health retirement 
at various ages. Also shown is the allowance included for promotional pay increases, which is shown 
as the percentage increase over the next year. 

 

Current age Percentage 
promotional pay 

increase over year 

Percentage leaving 
the Fund each year 

as a result of 
withdrawal from 

service

Percentage leaving 
the Fund each year 

as a result of Ill-
health retirement 

20 3.5% 6.0% 0.00% 

25 3.2% 6.0% 0.02% 

30 1.9% 6.0% 0.04% 

35 0.6% 6.0% 0.06% 

40 0.0% 6.0% 0.08% 

45 0.0% 6.0% 0.16% 

50 0.0% 4.0% 0.23% 

55 0.0% 2.0% 0.53% 

60 0.0% 0.0% 0.83% 

 

Page 46



Powys County Council
Actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019

DRAFT Individual Employer Results as at 4 December 2019

Employer

Employer codes included

Funding Target

Open or closed to new entrants

Current contributions 2019/20 18.3% plus £112,900 p.a.

20.8%

Recovery period (years from 1 April 2020) 16.00

Reduction for surplus (0.9%)

1.1%

Total contributions 2020/21 20.9%

Contribution rate 2020/21 20.9% plus £0

Contribution rate 2021/22 20.9% plus £0

Contribution rate 2022/23 20.9% plus £0

Notes: The past service contribution amounts are assumed to be payable over the recovery period, increasing at 3.6% pa

          Contribution amounts assumed to be paid monthly

Liabilities Assets Surplus / (Shortfall) Funding level

Last valuation (or commencement date if later) 18.475 16.365 (2.110) 88.6%

Ongoing Funding Target 22.351 22.677 0.326 101.5%

Salary increases

Last valuation 4.40% 4.40% 3.50% 2.00%

Ongoing Funding Target 4.10% 4.10% 3.60% 2.10%

Actives
Deferreds (inc. 

undecideds)

Pensioners (inc. 

dependants)
Total

Number 107 156 83 346

Average age (unweighted) 46.5 44.1 69.3 -

Total salary roll (2014 scheme definition) 2,437,024 - - 2,437,024

Sum of pre 2014 pension 336,416 312,309 429,055 1,077,780

Sum of pre 2014 lump sum 522,587 692,137 - 1,214,724

Sum of post 2014 pension 228,015 36,199 25,510 289,723

Cashflows (£Ms) 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

Employee contributions 0.166 0.166 0.162 0.494 

Normal employer contributions 0.343 0.457 0.450 1.250 

Additional (shortfall) employer contributions 0.151 0.105 0.109 0.366 

Strain on Fund employer contributions 0.005  - 0.034 0.039 

Contributions to cover additional pension/service  -  -  -  - 

Pension paid 0.382 0.398 0.447 1.226 

Retirement lump sums 0.023 0.032 0.046 0.101 

Transfer out amount 0.030 0.048 0.002 0.080 

Transfer in amount 0.007 0.180 0.065 0.252 

Refunds  - 0.002 0.002 0.005 

Other outgo  -  -  -  - 

Other income 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.005 

One Off contributions 0.060  -  - 0.060 

The disclaimer set out in the covering report also applies to these results.

Employer information

Current contributions 2019/20 (based on 2016 valuation)

Employer contributions 2020/21 (based on 2019 valuation)

Proposed contribution schedule 2020 - 2023

67, 116

Allowance for additional liabilities arising from McCloud judgement

Primary (future service) contribution rate from 1 April 2020 (% pay)

This Individual Employer Results Schedule should be read in conjunction with the covering report entitled "Information to accompany Individual 

Employer Results Schedule' dated November 2019. 

Balance sheet (£Ms)

Brecon Beacons National Park

Ongoing

Open

Financial assumptions (% pa)

Pension increases / 

revaluation of pension

Summary of membership data as at 31 March 2019

Additional information

Discount rate 

- in service

Discount rate 

- left service

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Wales Audit Annual Letter 2019

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 31 January 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager/S151 Officer

Contact Details
Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report Annual letter from Wales Audit for information

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1

Enclosure 2

Public Interest Test Not applicable

Recommendation(s) a) That the Committee receives the Annual Audit 
Letter.

1.1 Introduction or Background

Wales Audit summarises the outcome of its work with the Authority over the preceding year 
in an annual letter which must be reviewed by members as an element of proper governance.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

a)  That the Committee receives the Annual Audit Letter.

Page 49

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 

Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 

www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Mr Julian Atkins – Chief Executive  

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Plas y Ffynnon 

Cambrian Way  

Brecon 

LD3 7HP 

Reference: 1602A2019-20 

Date issued: 3 December 2019 

Dear Julian 

Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities under the 

Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and my reporting responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice. 

The Authority complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and 
use of resources 

It is the Authority’s responsibility to: 

• put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of 

transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;  

• maintain proper accounting records; 

• prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and 

• establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,  

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to: 

• provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements; 

• review the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources; and 

• issue a certificate confirming that I have completed the audit of the accounts. 

  

Page 51

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


Page 2 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

I issued an unqualified audit opinion on 30 July 2019 

Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the 

requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom. This code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards. In line with the 

revised statutory deadline for publication of the audited accounts, an unqualified audit opinion on 

the accounting statements confirming that they present a true and fair view of the Authority’s 

financial position and transactions was issued on 30 July 2019. The key matters arising from the 

accounts audit were reported to the Authority in my Audit of Financial Statements report on 30 July 

2019. 

I am satisfied that the Authority has appropriate arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

My consideration of the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

has been based on: 

• audit work undertaken on the annual accounts; 

• audit work completed by the Auditor General under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 

2009 (the Measure);  

• audit work undertaken in response to questions or objections to the accounts raised by 

electors under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004; and 

• a review of the Authority’s overall financial position. 

Work undertaken under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 

The Auditor General reports on his responsibilities under the Measure in his Annual Improvement 

Report. He published the 2019 report on 24 April 2019. This report highlights the effectiveness of 

these arrangements and where improvements could be made. Although no formal 

recommendations for improvement were made, the Auditor General highlighted some proposals for 

improvement that need to be progressed in the current year. 

Electors’ questions and objections  

I received no formal questions or objections to the 2018-19 accounts. 

Overall financial position 

The Authority’s retained reserves have increased significantly in recent years, as a consequence 

of unexpected additional Welsh Government grants received at the year-end. The challenge for the 

Authority, in the medium term, is application of these grants within the context of reduced core 

funding. Careful consideration of reserves balances and how they might be used to support 

financial plans is particularly important as it is not sustainable to rely on reserves to support 

ongoing costs. Once reserves have been utilised, other sources of funds or efficiencies must be 

identified. Further detail of my analysis is included in the appendix to this letter. 

  

Page 52



Page 3 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

I issued a certificate confirming that the audit of the accounts has been completed 
on 30 July 2019 

I received no electors’ questions or objections in relation to the 2018-19 audit. Having given an 

audit opinion on the financial statements and concluded on the authority’s arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, I was able to certify that the audit 

was complete when I issued my audit opinion.  

The financial audit fee for 2018-19 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee set out in 

the Annual Audit Plan. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Anthony Veale 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 

cc Elaine Standen 

  

Page 53



Page 4 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

Appendix: Overall financial position 

Austerity funding remains the most significant challenge facing all national park authorities in 

Wales. These financial pressures are likely to continue for the medium term.  

In 2018-19, the Authority generated a surplus on the provision of services of £51,000 (2017-18 

surplus £657,000).  

Exhibit 1 below identifies that the Authority’s core funding of national park grant and levy has 

reduced significantly since 2014-15. The impact of the annual reductions has been offset in  

2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 by additional Welsh Government grant awards received at the end 

of the financial year. 

Exhibit 1 Core funding and additional grants 

Core funding by national park grant and levy has reduced since 2014-15. This has been offset by 

additional grant funding received at the end of 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19. 

 

 

 

On the basis that the additional grant funds were unplanned, the Authority’s reserves have 

increased in these years. These funds are held as earmarked reserves until they are applied to 

finance expenditure.  

  

Page 54



Page 5 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2018-19 

Exhibit 2 Usable reserves 

Usable reserves have increased by almost £3 million between 2014-15 and 2018-19 due to 

additional financial pressures funding in 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19. 

 

 

 

Careful consideration of reserves balances and how they might be used to support financial plans 

is particularly important as it is not sustainable to rely on reserves to support ongoing costs. Once 

reserves have been deleted, other sources of funds or efficiencies must be identified. The 

challenge for the Authority is to how to use reserves generated by unexpected grant receipts in the 

context of a reduced core budget. 

We will continue to monitor the Authority’s financial position and its plans to utilise these reserves.  

 

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Tudalen 1 o 5 - Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 2018-19 

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 

Tel/Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 

www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Mr Julian Atkins – Prif Weithredwr 

Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog  

Plas y Ffynnon 

Ffordd Cambria   

Aberhonddu  

LD3 7HP   

Cyfeirnod: 1602A2019-20 

Dyddiad cyhoeddi: 3 Rhagfyr 2019 

Annwyl Julian 

Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau 
Brycheiniog 2018-19 

Mae'r llythyr hwn yn crynhoi'r negeseuon allweddol sy'n codi o'm cyfrifoldebau statudol o dan 

Ddeddf Archwilio Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2004 a'm cyfrifoldebau adrodd o dan y Cod Ymarfer 

Archwilio. 

Cydymffurfiodd yr Awdurdod â'i gyfrifoldebau yn ymwneud ag adroddiadau 
ariannol a'r defnydd o adnoddau 

Cyfrifoldeb yr Awdurdod yw: 

• sefydlu systemau rheolaeth fewnol er mwyn sicrhau rheoleidd-dra a chyfreithlondeb 

trafodion a sicrhau bod ei asedau'n ddiogel;  

• cadw cofnodion cyfrifyddu priodol; 

• paratoi Datganiad o Gyfrifon yn unol â'r gofynion perthnasol; a 

• sefydlu a chadw golwg ar drefniadau priodol i sicrhau darbodusrwydd, effeithlonrwydd ac 

effeithiolrwydd yn ei ddefnydd o adnoddau. 

Mae Deddf Archwilio Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2004 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i mi: 

• roi barn archwilio ar y datganiadau cyfrifyddu; 

• adolygu trefniadau'r Awdurdod i sicrhau darbodusrwydd, effeithlonrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd 

yn ei ddefnydd o adnoddau; a 

• rhoi tystysgrif yn cadarnhau fy mod wedi cwblhau archwiliad y cyfrifon. 

  

Page 57

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


Tudalen 2 o 5 - Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 2018-19 

Rhoddais farn archwilio ddiamod ar 30 Gorffennaf 2019 

Mae awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru yn paratoi eu datganiadau cyfrifyddu yn unol â gofynion Cod 

Ymarfer CIPFA/LASAAC ar gyfer Cyfrifon Awdurdodau Lleol yn y Deyrnas Unedig. Mae'r Cod hwn 

yn seiliedig ar Safonau Adrodd Ariannol Rhyngwladol. Yn unol â’r dyddiad cau statudol diwygiedig 

ar gyfer cyhoeddi’r cyfrifon a archwiliwyd, rhoddwyd barn archwilio ddiamod ar y datganiadau 

cyfrifyddu gan gadarnhau eu bod yn rhoi darlun cywir a theg o sefyllfa a thrafodion ariannol yr 

Awdurdod ar 30 Gorffennaf 2019. Hysbyswyd yr Awdurdod am y materion allweddol a gododd o 

archwiliad y cyfrifon yn fy adroddiad ar Archwiliad o Ddatganiadau Ariannol ar Dydd Mawrth, 30 

Gorffennaf 2019. 

Yr wyf yn fodlon bod gan yr Awdurdod drefniadau priodol ar waith i sicrhau darbodusrwydd, 

effeithlonrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd yn ei ddefnydd o adnoddau 

Mae fy ystyriaeth o drefniadau’r Awdurdod i sicrhau darbodusrwydd, effeithlonrwydd ac 

effeithiolrwydd wedi'i seilio ar: 

• y gwaith archwilio a wnaed ar y cyfrifon blynyddol; 

• y gwaith archwilio a gwblhawyd gan yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol dan Fesur Llywodraeth Leol 

(Cymru) 2009 (y Mesur);  

• y gwaith archwilio a wnaed mewn ymateb i gwestiynau neu wrthwynebiadau i’r cyfrifon a 

godwyd gan etholwyr dan Ddeddf Archwilio Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2004; ac 

• adolygiad o sefyllfa ariannol gyffredinol yr Awdurdod. 

Y gwaith a wnaed dan Fesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2009 

Mae’r Archwilydd Cyffredinol yn adrodd ar ei gyfrifoldebau dan y Mesur yn ei Adroddiad Gwella 

Blynyddol. Cyhoeddodd adroddiad 2019 ar 24 Ebrill 2019 Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn tynnu sylw at 

effeithiolrwydd y trefniadau hyn a ble y gellid gwneud gwelliannau. Er na wnaed argymhellion 

ffurfiol ar gyfer gwella, tynnodd yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol sylw at rai cynigion ar gyfer gwella y mae 

angen eu datblygu yn ystod y flwyddyn hon. 

Cwestiynau a gwrthwynebiadau etholwyr  

Ni dderbyniais gwestiynau na gwrthwynebiadau ffurfiol i gyfrifon 2018-19. 

Sefyllfa Ariannol Gyffredinol 

Mae’r cronfeydd wrth gefn a gedwir gan yr Awdurdod wedi cynyddu’n sylweddol yn y blynyddoedd 

diwethaf, o ganlyniad i grantiau ychwanegol annisgwyl gan Lywodraeth Cymru a dderbyniwyd ar 

ddiwedd y flwyddyn. Yr her i’r Awdurdod, yn y tymor canol, yw defnyddio’r grantiau hyn o fewn cyd-

destun gostyngiad yn y cyllid craidd. Mae ystyried balansau cronfeydd wrth gefn yn ofalus a sut y 

gellid eu defnyddio i gynorthwyo cynlluniau ariannol yn neilltuol o bwysig gan nad yw’n gynaliadwy 

i ddibynnu ar gronfeydd wrth gefn i gynnal costau sy’n mynd ymlaen yn barhaus. Unwaith mae 

cronfeydd wrth gefn wedi cael eu defnyddio, rhaid canfod ffynonellau ariannol eraill neu arbedion. 

Ceir manylion pellach am fy nadansoddiad yn yr atodiad i’r llythyr hwn. 

  

Page 58



Tudalen 3 o 5 - Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 2018-19 

Cyhoeddais dystysgrif yn cadarnhau bod archwiliad y cyfrifon wedi'i gwblhau ar 
Dydd Mawrth, 30 Gorffennaf 2019 

Ni dderbyniais gwestiynau na gwrthwynebiadau gan etholwyr ynghylch archwiliad 2018-19. Ar ôl 

rhoi barn archwilio ar y datganiadau ariannol a dod i gasgliad ynghylch trefniadau'r Awdurdod i 

sicrhau darbodusrwydd, effeithlonrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd yn ei ddefnydd o adnoddau, roeddwn yn 

gallu tystio bod yr archwiliad wedi'i gwblhau pan gyhoeddais fy marn archwilio.  

Ar hyn o bryd, disgwylir i’r ffi archwilio ariannol ar gyfer 2018-19 fod yn unol â'r ffi y cytunwyd arni 

ac a nodir yn y Cynllun Archwilio Blynyddol. 

 

Yn gywir 

 

Derwyn Owen 

Ar gyfer ac ar ran Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru 

cc Elaine Standen 

  

Page 59



Tudalen 4 o 5 - Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 2018-19 

Atodiad Sefyllfa Ariannol Gyffredinol 

Mae cyllido cyni yn dal i fod yr her fwyaf sylweddol sy’n wynebu pob awdurdod parc cenedlaethol 

yng Nghymru. Mae’r pwysau ariannol hyn yn debygol o barhau yn y tymor canol.  

Yn 2018-19, cynhyrchodd yr Awdurdod warged ar ddarparu gwasanaethau o £51,000 (£657,000 

oedd gwarged 2017-18).  

Mae Arddangosyn 1 isod yn nodi bod cyllid craidd yr Awdurdod o grant ac ardoll parc cenedlaethol 

wedi gostwng yn sylweddol ers 2014-15. Mae effaith y gostyngiadau blynyddol wedi cael ei 

gwrthbwyso yn 2016-17, 2017-18 a 2018-19 gan ddyfarniadau grant ychwanegol Llywodraeth 

Cymru a dderbyniwyd ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol. 

Arddangosyn 1: Cyllid craidd a grantiau ychwanegol 

Mae’r cyllid craidd o grant ac ardoll parc cenedlaethol wedi gostwng ers 2014-15. Cafodd hyn ei 

wrthbwyso gan gyllid grant ychwanegol ar ddiwedd 2016-17, 2017-18 a 2018-19. 

 

Ar y sail fod y cyllid grant ychwanegol heb ei gynllunio, mae cronfeydd wrth gefn yr Awdurdod wedi 

cynyddu yn y blynyddoedd hyn. Cedwir y cyllid hwn fel cronfeydd wrth gefn wedi eu clustnodi hyd 

nes y’u defnyddir i gyllido gwariant.  

  

Page 60



Tudalen 5 o 5 - Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol – Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog 2018-19 

Arddangosyn 2: Cronfeydd wrth gefn y gellir eu defnyddio 

Mae cronfeydd wrth gefn y gellir eu defnyddio wedi cynyddu o dros £3 miliwn rhwng 2014-15 a 

2018-19 oherwydd cyllid pwysau ariannol ychwanegol yn 2016-17, 2017-18 a 2018-19. 

 

 

Mae ystyried balansau cronfeydd wrth gefn yn ofalus a sut y gellid eu defnyddio i gynorthwyo 

cynlluniau ariannol yn neilltuol o bwysig gan nad yw’n gynaliadwy i ddibynnu ar gronfeydd wrth 

gefn i gynnal costau sy’n mynd ymlaen yn barhaus. Unwaith mae cronfeydd wrth gefn wedi cael eu 

dileu, rhaid canfod ffynonellau ariannol eraill neu arbedion. Yr her i'r Awdurdod yw sut i ddefnyddio 

cronfeydd wrth gefn a gynhyrchwyd drwy dderbyn grantiau annisgwyl yng nghyd-destun cyllideb 

graidd lai. 

Byddwn yn parhau i fonitro sefyllfa ariannol yr Awdurdod a’i gynlluniau i ddefnyddio’r cronfeydd 

wrth gefn hyn.  

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Progress Q3 2019-20

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 31 January 2020

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager /S151 Officer

Contact Details
Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To update the Committee on the delivery of the Internal 
Audit Plan

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 Internal Auditor’s Report (Block 2)

Public Interest Test Not applicable

Recommendation(s) a) That Members receive the internal auditor’s report
b) That outstanding actions be noted

1.0 Background

This is year 2 of a three-year internal audit service level agreement with TIAA to provide 
internal audit services.  The revised programme of work for the year was approved by CGT in 
June and Audit and Scrutiny Committee in July.

1.1 Audit Reports

The following audits of Financial Management Systems and Health and Safety systems were 
completed in October, plus a review of actions taken to address audit findings.  The final report 
is attached in full.  A representative of TIAA will be at the meeting to present and discuss the 
findings of the audit.

1. Outstanding Actions from previous audits
Actions arising from audit reports are reviewed by the relevant managers, assigned to staff and 
monitored by CGT.  Below is a summary of the remaining actions arising from 2018/19 and 
2019/20 audits. An audit review of implementation of all management actions arising from 
2018/19 was undertaken as part of the block 2 audit.  Completed actions are not included.

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



2019/20 – YEAR 2 - Block 1 -  July 2019

Human Resources

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

A Recruitment Policy and procedure 
be drafted, approved and 
implemented.

Task Action: HR Officer to 
prepare a draft policy for:

 CGT

SMF

Authority 

29/02/20

29/02/20

31/03/20

 HR Officer, CGT – 
policy update drafted, 
reviewed for Welsh 
language, process of 
approval put back 
during restructure 
process.

The Pay and Allowances Staff 
Expenses Policy be reviewed and 
updated as necessary.

Action:  HR officer to 
review and submit any 
amendments to CGT

31/10/19 HR Officer, Finance 
Manager in progress, 
will be put back as 
consequence of 
restructure process.

Business Continuity Planning 

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

The Business Continuity Strategy be 
reviewed and approved by the 
Corporate Governance Team and 
the Authority.

Task Action:  Strategy to be 
reviewed and updated roles 
and responsibilities for key 
personnel revised.

31/03/20 Systems and 
Performance 
Manager

Meetings held to 
discuss, outcome to 
be considered by 
CGT

Each area of the organisation be 
required to maintain a log containing 
specific information including key 
contacts, key suppliers, staff 
accessibility, critical systems and the 
maximum downtime period of those 
systems.

Process Action:  Key managers 
should be required to 
ensure that up to date 
service continuity 
information relevant to their 
work area is maintained and 
accessible to other team 
members and the 
Director/CEO.

31/3/20 CEO/Delivery 
Director

Page 64



Director/CEO to designate 
key managers.

General Data Protection Regulations 

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

A new service level agreement 
including details of service provision, 
costs and data protection 
compliance be implemented 
between the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority and the 
City of Cardiff Council in relation to 
Payroll Services.

Task Finance Manager to arrange 
for an updated and GDPR-
compliant SLA to be entered 
into with Cardiff Council, 
subject to a consultation 
with the Monitoring Officer 
on applicability of contract 
standing orders to the 
approval of a revised SLA.

31/03/20 Finance 
Manager/Cardiff 
Council legal 
department. 
Response still 
awaited from Cardiff.

A Service Level Agreement be 
implemented between the 
Pembrokeshire Coast National Park 
Authority and the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority to reflect 
the new role and responsibilities of 
the Data Protection Officer within 
the two Authorities, the support 
arrangements and any attributable 
costs associated with the service.

Task PCNPA be requested to 
draft an SLA setting out the 
role and responsibilities of 
BBNPA in providing a Data 
Protection Officer to the 
Authority.

31/03/20 Delivery 
Director/Systems and 
Performance 
Manager.

Response still 
awaited from PCNPA

Cyber Security 

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

The current strategy for the 
retention of backup tapes be 
reviewed.

Task Revised strategy to be 
reviewed by CGT

29/02/20 Systems and 
Performance 
Manager.

A policy and data protection impact 
assessment be documented for the 
use of dashboard cameras that 
includes the retention and sharing 
arrangements for the images 
corporate dashboard cameras that 
includes the retention and sharing 
arrangements for the images

Task Assessment to be 
documented 

29/02/20 Systems and 
Performance 
Manager.  
(Assessment 
completed, review by 
DPO outstanding)

Page 65



2019/20 – YEAR 2 - Block 2 -  October 2019

Health and Safety

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

The Lone Working Policy and Procedural 
Guidance document be reviewed and 
updated.

task Corporate Services Officer will 
add this to the next H & S 
Working Group to review.  

Planning has Procedure Notes - 
Lone Working which was 
reviewed in January 2019 – to 
be incorporated into the policy 
as per separate audit 
recommendation.

H&S Working group to agree a 
draft Policy and submit to CGT 
for approval.

29/02/20 Health and Safety 
Working Group 
members

The updated Accident Form be detailed 
in the Health and Safety Management 
System when the review of the Health 
and Safety Management System 
commences

task The Health and Safety 
management system is in the 
process of being updated.

CSO has already addressed this 
with Thomas Carroll and 
mentioned that a review and 
update of the Safety 
Management System is 
required.  Thomas Carroll are 
due to provide with the new 
updates.

The accident form process has 
been set up in the last year and 
this will be added to the 
management system in due 
course.

29/02/20 Corporate Services 
Officer

The Lone Working Policy is supported by 
a Development Management – 
Procedure Note - Lone Working which 
details the procedure Staff and 
Volunteers should follow when working 
alone.

task This will be addressed with the 
update of the Lone Working 
Policy above.

29/02/20 Health and Safety 
Working Group 
members

Page 66



Financial Systems

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

The Standing Orders relating to 
Contracts be reviewed and approved 
by the Authority at the earliest 
convenience and be reviewed at 
least every three years thereafter.

Task Standing orders are not out 
of date as they reflect 
current legislation and WG 
policy.   However, agreed 
that a formal review should 
be undertaken and recorded 
on the document.

31/1/20 Finance Manager

Monthly User access audit report on 
amendments to supplier details 
requested from Carmarthenshire CC.  
This is a system administrator report 
and can only be accessed by 
Carmarthenshire staff.  Report 
requested.

process Report will be reviewed and 
saved with period end 
reports

29/02/20 Carmarthenshire 
CC finance team

Auditor Review of 2018/19 audit actions outstanding 

Outstanding Actions New 
process or 
Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

A detailed Data Protection Act 
2018 Compliance Plan be 
documented as intended that 
details all of the necessary 
actions that need to be 
completed to ensure full 
compliance with the Act.

Task This recommendation is 
in the process of being 
implemented. The Data 
Protection Act 
Compliance Plan has been 
carried forward from the 
2018/19 Performance 
Objectives to the 2019/20 
Performance Objectives.

31/3/20 IT Manager

Terms of Reference be documented 
for the Management Team.

Task The Management Team has 
been reviewed and is now 
the Corporate Governance 
Team with a changed 
membership, the Authority 
is undergoing a wider 
change programme and the 
Terms of Reference for the 
Corporate Governance Team 
will be reviewed once this is 
completed

30/06//20 CEO

The Grants Policy and Procedure be 
rewritten and approved by the 

The Grants Policy needs to 
be incorporated into the 

31/03/20 Natural Resources 

Page 67



Management Team project management 
process.

Team Manager,
IT Manager
Finance Manager

1.5 Risk
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will recommend 
actions which will help to manage and reduce risks.  Internal audit is one of the tools which is 
used by Members and management to gain assurance that internal controls are operating 
effectively.  

1.6 Conclusion
Members and senior management should understand the internal controls operated by the 
Authority and take action where significant risks or weaknesses are identified.  Action in this 
regard will need to be prioritised in the context of the Authority’s limited resources in the light 
of appetite for risk.  Priorities for the 2020/21 audit programme were discussed in December 
with Helen Cargill of TIAA and the draft audit plan will be reviewed by CGT before being 
presented to the Committee at the next meeting.  

2.0Recommendation

a) That Members receive the internal auditor’s report
b) That outstanding actions be noted

 

Page 68



Internal Audit

December 2019

FINAL

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

Block 2 Review:

Key Financial Controls, Health and Safety, Follow Up

2019/20

P
age 69



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 1

Block 2 Review
Introduction
1. This is the second review of the internal control arrangements at Brecon Beacons National Park Authority in the year to date. The review was carried out in 

October as part of the planned internal audit work for 2019/20.

Summary
2. The areas reviewed and the type of review are shown in table below. For system reviews assessments of the effectiveness of the internal controls are also 

shown in the table below. These assessments are based on the evaluation and testing of the key probity risks.

Summary of the Evaluations of the Effectiveness of the Internal Controls

System Type of Review Assessment

Key Financial Controls (General Ledger, Creditors 
and Procurement)

System Reasonable

Health and Safety System Reasonable

Follow Up Follow Up No Assessment

Key Findings
3. The significant matters identified from the audit work undertaken which need to be addressed in order to strengthen further the control environment and the 

recommendations arising are set out in the management action plan section of this report. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by the 
Association for their full impact before they are implemented.

4. The principal purpose of the review was to assess the effectiveness of the internal control arrangements in mitigating against risk. Operational Effectiveness 
action points were identified and opportunities for enhancements to the current arrangements are set out in the Operational Effective management action plan.

P
age 70



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 2

Release of Report
5. The table below sets out the history of this report.

Date draft report issued: 30th October 2019

Date management responses rec’d: 10th December 2019

Date final report issued: 12th December 2019

P
age 71



PRIORITY GRADINGS

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity. 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken.

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 3

Management Action Plan – Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management
Comments

Implementation
Timetable

(dd/mm/yy)

Responsible
Officer

(Job Title)

Key Financial Control (General Ledger, Creditors and Procurement)

1 Compliance The Authority’s Risk Register is not 
being updated in a timely manner.

The financial risks 18 and 22 be 
reviewed regularly and the Risk 
Register updated accordingly to 
reflect any changes in the risk or in 
the mitigating controls.

2 Finance Manager – the Financial 
risks are reviewed at least quarterly 
by CGT and financial risks are 
discussed and updated collectively 
by CGT. 

Immediate CGT

1 Compliance As part of the new supplier process, the 
Finance Team is not verifying the 
legitimacy of the bank account details 
on the New Supplier Forms.

As part of the new supplier set up 
process, new suppliers be 
contacted by the Finance Team to 
independently verify the bank 
account details prior to updating the 
supplier database within the 
Business World system.

2 Finance Manager to remind finance 
team of the existing requirement to 
ensure independent checks are 
carried out of new/revised supplier 
details – this is included in 
procedures and guidance to the 
team but has not been complied 
with in all cases.  See also additional 
actions below on specific form 
design and checks to be carried out.  
Finance Manager to check on 
signing off the relevant form that 
staff have completed required 
checks.

Immediate Finance 
Manager, 
Finance Team

P
age 72



PRIORITY GRADINGS

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity. 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken.

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 4

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management
Comments

Implementation
Timetable

(dd/mm/yy)

Responsible
Officer

(Job Title)

2 Compliance The Standing Orders relating to 
Contracts were last reviewed in April 
2016 and are out of date.

The Standing Orders relating to 
Contracts be reviewed and 
approved by the Authority at the 
earliest convenience and be 
reviewed at least every three years 
thereafter.

3 Standing orders are not out of date 
as they reflect current legislation 
and WG policy.   However, agreed 
that a formal review should be 
undertaken and recorded on the 
document.

Immediate Finance Manager

3 Compliance The Creditors Invoices Procedures 
require the Finance Manager to sign 
and check the Remittance Proposal 
prior to processing the BACS file. A 
review of a sample of five Remittance 
Proposals confirmed that the report is 
not being signed by the Finance 
Manager to evidence this check.

The Remittance Proposal reports be 
signed by the Finance Manager to 
evidence that the checks have been 
undertaken in line with the Credit 
Invoice Payments procedures.

3 Finance Officer to provide copy 
payments report to Finance 
Manager prior to processing on the 
bank.  Payments runs to be 
scheduled to allow for this.

Immediate Finance Officer,
Finance Manager

5 Compliance A review of the process and the New 
Supplier form identified that no further 
bona fide checks are undertaken. It is 
best practice to undertake Companies 
House and supplier website checks to 
ensure that the supplier being set up is 
legitimate.

Companies House and supplier 
website checks be undertaken by 
the Finance Team prior to setting up 
new suppliers and a section be 
added to the New Supplier Form to 
evidence the checks have been 
carried out.

3 See point 1 above, Form amended 
to reflect the new requirement.

Immediate Finance 
manager, 
Finance team

6 Compliance There was no evidence of any 
weekly/monthly report of modifications 
to supplier details being produced and 
reviewed by the Finance Manager.

A weekly report of modifications to 
supplier details be generated from 
Business World and all changes be 
checked and the report signed as 
evidence.  The report be retained as 
evidence of checks undertaken.

3 Monthly User access audit report on 
amendments to supplier details 
requested from Carmarthenshire 
CC.  This is a system administrator 
report and can only be accessed by 
Carmarthenshire staff.  Report 
requested.

30/11/19 Finance 
Manager/
Carmarthenshire 
Finance System 
administration 
team.

P
age 73



PRIORITY GRADINGS

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity. 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken.

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 5

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management
Comments

Implementation
Timetable

(dd/mm/yy)

Responsible
Officer

(Job Title)

Health and Safety

7 Operational A review of The Lone Working Policy 
and Procedural Guidance identified that 
the last review took place in 2006. 

The Lone Working Policy and 
Procedural Guidance document be 
reviewed and updated.

2 Corporate Services Officer will add 
this to the next H & S Working Group 
to review.  

Planning has Procedure Notes - 
Lone Working which was reviewed 
in January 2019 – to be 
incorporated into the policy as per 
separate audit recommendation.

H&S Working group to agree a draft 
Policy and submit to CGT for 
approval.

31/01/20
Health and 
Safety Working 
Group members

8 Compliance The Corporate Services Officer 
confirmed that when they stepped into 
post two years ago, adjustments were 
made to the accident reporting form to 
include a section on management 
investigation. This section is for the line 
manager to complete prior to sending 
the form to the Corporate Services 
Manager. This allows for more detail to 
be recorded about the 
accident/injury/near-miss and means 
that the manager is aware of the 
incident too. The Health and Safety 
Manual System does not detail this 
process.

The updated Accident Form be 
detailed in the Health and Safety 
Management System when the 
review of the Health and Safety 
Management System commences.

3 The Health and Safety management 
system is in the process of being 
updated.

CSO has already addressed this 
with Thomas Carroll and mentioned 
that a review and update of the 
Safety Management System is 
required.  Thomas Carroll are due to 
provide with the new updates.

The accident form process has been 
set up in the last year and this will be 
added to the management system in 
due course.

29/02/20 Corporate 
Services Officer

P
age 74



PRIORITY GRADINGS

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity. 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken.

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 6

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management
Comments

Implementation
Timetable

(dd/mm/yy)

Responsible
Officer

(Job Title)

9 Operational The Lone Working Policy is supported 
by a Development Management – 
Procedure Note - Lone Working which 
details the procedure Staff and 
Volunteers should follow when working 
alone.

The Development Management – 
Procedure Note – Lone Working be 
included in the Lone Working Policy 
when it is updated to reduce the 
number of documents relating to 
lone working and ensure that all the 
information is available from one 
document.

3 This will be addressed with the 
update of the Lone Working Policy 
above.

31/01/20 Health and 
Safety Working 
Group members

P
age 75



ADVISORY NOTE

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures.

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 7

Operational Effectiveness Action Plan

Ref Risk Area Item Management
Comments

Key Financial Controls (General Ledger, Creditors and Procurement)

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified.

Health and Safety

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified.

P
age 76



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 8

[

Scope and Limitations of the Review
6. The scopes of the reviews were set out in the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, which was agreed with the Audit and Scrutiny Committee in July 2019.

7. The limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan.

8. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and 
specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report.

Assessment of the Key Control Objective
9. This review identified and tested the controls that are being operated by the Association and an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating 

the key control risks is provided. The assessments are:

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.

Reasonable Assurance The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 
managed and process objectives achieved. 

Limited Assurance The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that 
risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action.

P
age 77



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 9

[

Detailed Findings

System: Key Financial Controls (General Ledger, Creditors, Procurement)

Evaluation Reasonable Assurance

10. The following matters were identified in reviewing the Key Risk Control Objective:

Background

10.1 The Authority has a statutory responsibility to prepare annual Financial Statements which present a true and fair view of its financial operations during the 
financial year, which runs from 1st April to 31st March.  The Finance Manager (nominated S151 Officer) is responsible for ensuring that the annual Statement 
of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the current Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice (CIPFA/LASAAC) and the relevant legislation. The Annual Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 was approved by the Authority on the 30th July 2019. 
The Statement has been published on the Authority’s website as required.

10.2 A review of the Audit of Financial Statements report written by the Wales Audit Office, issued in July 2019, confirmed that no material internal control 
weaknesses were identified by the external auditors when auditing the 2018/19 accounts.

10.3 A review of the electronic Risk Register for the Authority identified that “Risk 18 – Financial Constraint” and “Risk 22 – Inadequate General Reserves” had not 
been updated for some time to include the current mitigating controls in place. The Data Protection Officer confirmed that the risk register should have been 
up to date as of October 2019 and following this finding, reminded the Finance Manager and the Delivery Director to update both risks. The Data Protection 
Officer accepted the findings and added that this is also an issue for other risks. The responsibility for the maintenance of the information held within the Risk 
Register is devolved down to the risk owners. The Risk Register is reviewed frequently at various management meetings and should be updated in a timely 
manner.

Recommendation: 1

Priority 2

The financial risks 18 and 22 be reviewed regularly and the Risk Register updated accordingly to reflect any changes 
in the risk or in the mitigating controls.

10.4 The previous Key Financial Controls audit undertaken in December 2018 provided a Limited Assurance grading and made five priority two (important) and two 
priority three (routine) recommendations. The recommendations have been followed up as part of this Block review and the implementation progress has been 
detailed in the Follow Up section.

10.5 The Financial Regulations were last approved by the Authority in June 2019 and set out the framework for managing the financial affairs of the Authority. The 
Regulations are supported by the Scheme of Delegations and the Standing Orders relating to Contracts both of which were documented and approved in April 
2019 and April 2016 respectively. The Standing Orders relating to Contracts is an important governance document and should be reviewed and approved by 
the Authority at least every three years in line with best practice to ensure that they remain relevant and up to date. 

P
age 78



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 10

[

Recommendation: 2

Priority 3

The Standing Orders relating to Contracts be reviewed and approved by the Authority at the earliest convenience 
and be reviewed at least every three years thereafter.

10.6 To inform the review, the Finance Manager provided the following financial procedures:

 Creditor Invoices Payments procedure;

 Creditor Change of Details procedure;

 Period End Checklist and procedure.

All procedures were documented by the Finance Manager and were last reviewed in September 2019 and reflect the processes currently in place.

General Ledger

10.7 The Finance Team consists of the Finance Manager, Finance Officer, Finance Assistant and an Accountant Technician.

10.8 The Authority utilises Unit 4-Business World financial system which is hosted by Carmarthenshire County Council. The Finance Manager provided a copy of 
the Service Level Agreement setting out the service specifications for the provision of financial system that will run until July 2022.

10.9 It was noted that members of staff outside the Finance Team have limited privileges and restricted user access roles within Business World meaning that they 
can only view transactional information and raise purchase orders relating to the budgets and cost centres they are aligned to. The user access roles within 
the Finance Team were also reviewed and deemed to be appropriate for the size of the team:

 The Finance Manager has the highest level of access and can view the Authority’s financial information, create cost centre and general ledger codes, 
post and approve month end journals and generate detailed transactional reports;

 The Finance Officer, Finance Assistant and Accounting Technician can also read financial information and generate reports but have restrictions when 
creating cost centre codes, general ledger codes and posting journals.

10.10 The Finance Manager is responsible for the monthly close down of the general ledger and undertakes this task on the first working day of the month that 
follows the accounting period. The process for the month end general ledger closedown is as follows:

 The Finance Manager generates a Trial Balance report and ensures that the balance sheet and income statement values agree. Any unreconciled items 
are investigated and recoded where applicable;

 The Finance Team will then undertake control account reconciliations for the Accounts Payable, Aged Creditors, Accounts Receivables, Aged Debtors, 
Payroll, internal Recharges, VAT and Bank Account ledgers which are reviewed and signed off as approved by the Finance Manager;

 The Finance Manager reviews the General Suspense Account to ensure that the balance is zero;

 The general ledger is then closed down by the Finance Manager.  This prevents any further postings to the period. Information can be back posted only 
with the use of the relevant password, which is set every month by the Finance Manager only;

 It was noted that every month, following month end, the Finance Manager signs the Period End Checklist as evidence that the processes for shutdown 
have been undertaken by the relevant staff and in a timely manner.

P
age 79



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 11

[

10.11 All control accounts, with the exception of the Bank Account and VAT are reconciled on a monthly basis by the Finance Officer and signed off as approved by 
the Finance Manager. The Bank Account control account is reconciled monthly by the Accounting Technician and reviewed and approved by the Finance 
Manager. The VAT reconciliation is undertaken by the Finance Manager on a quarterly basis. 

10.12 All reconciliations are undertaken electronically via Business World system with the exception of the Bank Account reconciliation, which is documented 
manually and physically signed and dated by both the Accounting Technician and the Finance Manager. A review of the control account reconciliations for 
July, August and September 2019 did not identify any issues. All reconciliations were completed and reviewed by the relevant individuals in a timely manner 
and no unusual or old reconciling items were noted.

10.13 A review of the Period End Checklists for July, August and September 2019 did not identify any issues. The month end processes were followed and completed 
by the Finance Team in a timely manner for all periods selected.

10.14 The General Suspense Account held a balance of 2 pence as at the time of the audit. It was noted that the account was last reviewed by the Finance Manager 
on the 1st October 2019.

10.15 The Finance Team posts journals to ensure the integrity of the general ledger and for budget monitoring reporting. All journals for each period must be posted 
to the general ledger prior to the last day of the month. Journals are entered on an excel spreadsheet template, reviewed and approved by the Finance 
Manager and then saved on a shared drive hosted by the Council, which is linked to Business World system. The file is then retrieved by the Finance Team 
directly via Business World and subsequently posted to the general ledger. Each journal posting must be supported by a Journal 2019/20 form which has to 
be signed by the person that has prepared and posted the journal and by the Finance Manager approving the journal posting. All forms are kept within the 
Journals file which is stored in the finance office. 

10.16 A review of the Journal file revealed that it has a Journal Reference Control Log header sheet listing all journals posted in the current financial year. 20 journals 
were posted to the general ledger since April 2019 to date. It was noted that all Journal 2019/20 forms were present and all had been completed and authorised 
by the relevant individual in a timely manner. 

Creditors

10.17 The Financial Regulations set out the arrangements for making payments to suppliers under section 4.8. The Regulations state that the process for paying 
suppliers is to be administered by the Finance Team and payments must be authorised in line with the Scheme of Delegations. 

10.18 All supplier invoices received by staff at external centres, in the post, or electronically must be forwarded promptly to the Finance Team for processing. The 
Finance Assistant is responsible for reviewing each invoice and posting the information on the Business World system so that invoices can be authorised and 
paid. Invoices are processed on the Business World system in two different ways:

 Purchase order invoices – Where a purchase order has already been set up and authorised. The invoices are matched to the purchase order and 
processed for payment after the goods/services have been marked as receipted within Business World by the relevant budget holder;

 Manual invoices – Where a purchase order has not been set up, the invoices are added to the Business World system and are electronically work flowed 
to the relevant budget holder for authorisation.

The workflows for each process through Business World provide appropriate segregation of duties and authorisation for payments to be made in line with the 
Authority’s Scheme of Delegations. In the event that an invoice has been work flowed to the incorrect Budget Holder, it is “parked” and the Finance Team is 
responsible for redistributing the invoice on hold to the correct Budget Holder until it has been duly authorised.

P
age 80



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 12

[

10.19 Invoices can be paid in two ways; by BACS (IP) or Cheque (CH). Each weekly payment run consists of one or both of the payment methods. The BACS and 
Cheque payment process is detailed within the Creditors Invoices Payments procedure and is as follows:

 The Finance Officer generates the Invoice Ready for Payment report of all invoices which have been authorised and are ready for payment. The Supplier 
Aged Debt report is then reviewed to identify those invoices which are due within 30 days and need to be paid;

 The Finance Officer generates the Remittance Proposal report listing the invoices scheduled for payment and uses this report to generate a BACS 
Payment file. The Remittance Proposal report and BACS Payment file are reviewed and signed by the Finance Manager prior to being uploaded to the 
bank for payment. The Finance Manager reviews both documents to ensure that balances are correct and that there has been no manipulation of the 
BACS Payment file. At this stage, a Cheque Proposal report is also generated for those suppliers wishing to be paid by cheque. The Finance Manager 
signs the cheques and sends them to the relevant supplier via the post;

 The Finance Officer then logs into the Barclays Internet Banking website and imports the BACS Payment file of payments to be made. A Payment 
Submission report is generated and signed by the Finance Manager as evidence that the information has been uploaded correctly and agrees to the 
BACS Payment file and Remittance Proposal;

 After the payment has been submitted the Finance Officer creates a journal based on the Remittance Proposal report and posts it to the general ledger. 
A new Invoice Ready for Payment report is generated to confirm that invoice payments have been processed and uploaded to the general ledger 
correctly.

10.20 A review of the reports for five payment runs processed between August and October 2019 was undertaken and evidence was present to confirm that all 
aspects of the process were followed with appropriate segregation of duties and authorisation for the payments. However it was noted that the Remittance 
Proposals had not been signed by the Finance Manager to evidence the checks undertaken prior to processing the payment. 

Recommendation: 3

Priority 3

The Remittance Proposal reports be signed by the Finance Manager to evidence that the checks have been 
undertaken in line with the Credit Invoice Payments procedures.

10.21 A Payments Report listing all payments made from April 2019 to date was obtained from the Business World system. A sample of 15 payments made to 
suppliers, including 10 of the highest value payments was selected and information reviewed. All payments were supported by invoices which had been 
authorised either through a purchase order or manually through the electronic workflow.

10.22 An analysis of the Payments Report did not identify any duplicate payments or payments to the wrong supplier.

10.23 A formal process is in place for the creation of new suppliers and the amendment of existing supplier details which is detailed within the Creditor Change of 
Details procedure. The process of administration of the supplier database resides with the Finance Team. Any member of staff that wishes to use a new 
supplier must first complete and sign a New Supplier form and forward it onto the Finance Team. It was noted that the New Supplier form is readily available 
to all members of staff via the intranet. 

P
age 81



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 13

[

10.24 Any member of the Finance Team can add the supplier on the system and must undertake a check to ensure that there are no conflicts of interests between 
the supplier and person requesting the set up. The New Supplier form is printed off by a member of the Finance Team, signed and handed over to the Finance 
Manager for approval. Once the Finance Manager has reviewed and signed the form, the new supplier is set up within the Business World system. A review 
of the set up process identified that the bank account details for the new supplier are added to the form by the member of staff requesting the set up and are 
not verified independently by the Finance Team. It is best practice to ensure that the bank account details are correct and therefore a check must be introduced 
whereby the supplier is contacted independently by the Finance Team to verify the bank account details.

Recommendation: 4

Priority 2

As part of the new supplier set up process, new suppliers be contacted by the Finance Team to independently verify 
the bank account details prior to updating the supplier database within the Business World system.

10.25 A discussion with the Finance Manager and a review of the New Supplier form noted that bona fide checks are not undertaken by the Finance Team. Companies 
House registration and supplier website checks are examples of bona fide checks which should be undertaken by the Finance Team in line with best practice. 
The New Supplier form should be amended to incorporate a section for these checks to be signed off as completed. 

Recommendation: 5

Priority 3

Companies House and supplier website checks be undertaken by the Finance Team prior to setting up new suppliers 
and a section be added to the New Supplier Form to evidence the checks have been carried out.

10.26 It was also noted that the supplier forms do not provide a section for evidencing checks undertaken when making changes to supplier details. Currently, 
changes to supplier details are actioned by the Finance Team following the receipt of supplier correspondence to request a change. The correspondence 
documentation is signed and dated by the member of staff actioning the change and a copy of the document kept in the Supplier File stored in the finance 
office. It was noted that prior to making bank account changes, the supplier is contacted to confirm the request is genuine. The suppliers are contacted using 
the contact details already stored on the Business World system. This is evidence of good practice and is a means of protecting the Authority from fraudulent 
requests to change bank details.

10.27 There was no evidence of any weekly/monthly report of modifications to supplier details being produced and reviewed by the Finance Manager. This is a 
further control for identification of unauthorised changes to bank details and a means of deterring fraud.

Recommendation: 6

Priority 3

A weekly report of modifications to supplier details be generated from Business World and all changes be checked 
and the report signed as evidence.  The report be retained as evidence of checks undertaken.

10.28 A sample of 10 new supplier set ups completed in the current financial year to date was examined and all were found to have been actioned accurately by the 
Finance Team and each form was signed and dated by the Finance Manager.

10.29 A sample of five notifications from suppliers requesting bank account changes was selected from the Supplier File. No issues were found as all information 
was updated correctly on the Business World system and each correspondence document was signed and dated by a member of the Finance Team to 
evidence that the supplier was contacted to confirm the validity of the request of change. 

P
age 82



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 14

[

Procurement

10.30 In October 2019, the Finance Manager documented a user guide incorporating the principles of the Standing Orders relating to Contracts. The user guide has 
been disseminated to all members of staff via the intranet. 

10.31 The Authority operates the majority of its procurement framework and processes in line with the Wales Government through Value Wales and Crown 
Commercial Services (CCS) by advertising all contracts and tenders on Sell2Wales.

10.32 The Standing Orders relating to Contracts document at what level a formal tendering process is required for supplies and services contracts with thresholds 
as follows:

 For works, services or supplies less than £2,000 (exc. VAT) – staff must obtain three verbal quotations as far as practicably possible and keep sufficient 
evidence to demonstrate that value for money for the Authority has been achieved;

 For works, services or supplies between £2,000 and £10,000 (exc. VAT) – staff must obtain three written quotations and keep a record of the basis for 
awarding the contract demonstrating the process for obtaining best value for the Authority; 

 For works, services or supplies between £10,000 and up to £25,000 (exc. VAT) a minimum of three written quotations must be obtained using 
Sell2Wales. Staff must keep full records of all the quotations submitted and the process by which they have awarded the contract; 

 For works, services or supplies above £25,000 (exc. VAT) – staff should in the first instance try and source supplier through a procurement framework 
such as Value Wales and Crown Commercial Service. If the works, services or supplies cannot be sourced through a framework, an official tender 
exercise should be undertaken via Sell2Wales or an equivalent UK-wide website for advertising contracts; 

 Orders for goods and services above £181,302 – staff are required to follow the European Union (EU) procurement processes under the Official Journal 
of the European Union (OJEU) rules;

 Orders for construction contracts above £4,551,413 – staff are required to follow the EU procurement processes under OJEU rules.

10.33 It was noted that for contracts above £25,000, staff have the ability to advertise on Sell2Wales in two ways:

 Open tendering – The contract is advertised, inviting suppliers to place a formal tender following which each tender is opened and evaluated;

 Ad-hoc selective tendering, two stage process – This process is useful to filter out unsuitable suppliers before allowing them to compete for the tender. 
A preliminary exercise is undertaken to compose a list of suitable suppliers which will then be allowed to tender in the same way as an open tender.

10.34 The Finance Manager confirmed that the majority of tenders are now opened electronically via Sell2Wales and as such there is no requirement to maintain a 
physical Tender Register given that all tender information is electronically stored on Sell2Wales. However, in the unlikely event of physical tenders being 
received, these must be addressed to and opened in the presence of the Finance Manager. 

10.35 A report of all tender exercises undertaken was generated from Sell2Wales. A review of five tenders undertaken since October 2018 did not identify any issues 
of non-compliance with the tender procedures. All tenders were processed electronically and documentation was available including the Invitation to tender 
letter, specification, price schedule and terms and conditions. The contract documentation for the tenders selected was all signed.

P
age 83



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 15

[

System: Health and Safety

Evaluation Reasonable Assurance

11. The following matters were identified in reviewing the Key Risk Control Objective:

11.1 There have been no issues identified by the External Auditors, Internal Auditors, the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) or by the Board regarding health and 
safety at the Authority.

11.2 There are two risks detailed in the Authority's risk register:

 Risk Number 6 - The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure in health and safety compliance in the Park as a whole resulting in the potential 
for litigation

 Risk Number 9 - The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure in health and safety compliance within the Authority's land or buildings resulting in 
the potential for litigation.

11.3 These risks have both been discussed at the Health and Safety Working Group meetings and there was no change to the scoring of 'Red'. It was noted that 
the contingency and assurances boxes for both risks were left blank but the mitigation fields had been completed. 

11.4 The Authority has a Health and Safety Management System in place which details the Health and Safety Policy and was last reviewed in February 2019. This 
is issued by the Chief Executive who states 'Compliance with legislation is the minimum acceptable standard and we are committed to achieving the highest 
levels of health and safety performance through continual, cost effective improvement'. The Corporate Services Officer confirmed that there are a number of 
updates that are required to be actioned in the Health and Safety Management System which will be carried out before the new financial year, 2020/21.  

11.5 The Authority also utilises an external health and safety advisory service, Thomas Carol, who attend site visits along with the Corporate Services Officer and 
provide the Authority with a report, including any actions they are required to take. The actions from these reports are collated into a spreadsheet document 
'Performance Review Action Plan' which includes information about the action that is required to be undertaken, the priority which it has been assigned, the 
responsible person for the action and space for comments to be added in relation to any progress made.

11.6 The Health and Safety Management System is based on the principles of HSG 65 - Successful Health and Safety Management and consists of the following 
elements:

 Policy;

 Organising;

 Planning and Implementing;

 Measuring Performance; and

 Reviewing Performance.

11.7 The Corporate Services Officer is a budget holder for all matters relating to Health and Safety. For 2019/20 the allocated budget for health and safety was 
£9,000. At the time of the review there was £1,970.05 remaining for the remainder of the financial year. The Health and Safety budget for 2019/20 has been 
used to provide things such as waterproof clipboards, sit and stand desks and business travel roller bags for Staff.  Training is not included in this budget and 
is taken separately out of the HR Budget.

P
age 84



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 16

[

11.8 The Health and Safety Committee Working Group meets on a quarterly basis with the last three meetings taking place in February, May and October 2019. A 
review of the agenda and minutes for each of the three meetings noted that the meetings follow the same structure, review the minutes from the previous 
meeting, report on any accidents or near misses, review and update on the Performance Review Action Plan which includes actions made by Thomas Carol 
the external Health and Safety Advisors.  The meetings are well attended.

11.9 The Authority states in the Health and Safety Management System, that training is provided to new starters at the earliest reasonable opportunity. Line 
managers are responsible for new starters and have a duty to ensure that any relevant additional precautions are taken to ensure the safety of the new starter 
until the training has been completed. 

11.10 The Headquarters building is managed by the Landlord, Dyfed Powys Police, who are responsible for carrying out fire alarm testing, fire drills, emergency 
lighting testing and monthly visual inspections of the fire extinguishers. A review of the Fire Safety Log Book revealed that the fire alarm testing was up to date 
but the last recorded date for emergency lighting testing, which is required to take place monthly, was the 9th September 2019 which meant that the testing 
had not taken place for October. Discussions with the Corporate Services Officer revealed that work is due to commence on upgrading the emergency lighting 
and for this reason a recommendation has not been raised. The fire extinguishers at all Authority buildings are serviced annually by an external company, 
Churchesfire. A walkthrough of the building was undertaken and a sample of fire extinguishers was selected to ensure the last annual service date was 
displayed. The last service carried out was in August 2019.  

11.11 The Authority have designated fire wardens who are each provided with a hi-visibility jacket to wear in the event of an evacuation and a waterproof clip board 
to accurately record the staff and visitors at the evacuation point. 

11.12 Visitors are required to sign into the building on arrival and are provided with a visitor’s lanyard and asked that they sign in and out each time they leave or 
enter the building, returning the lanyard at the end of the day. Information on evacuation points and routes is also provided.

11.13 The process for recording and reporting injuries/accidents/near-miss incidences is detailed in the Health and Safety Management System. A completed 
accident report form (F2508) must be completed within 10 days. An Accident Summary form is updated by the Corporate Services Officer each time a form is 
submitted. Accident forms are available in paper form and are available to download from the intranet. The Corporate Services Officer confirmed that when 
they stepped into post two years ago, adjustments were made to the accident reporting form to include a section on management investigation. This section 
is for the line manager to complete prior to sending the form to the Corporate Services Manager. This allows for more detail to be recorded about the 
accident/injury/near-miss and means that the manager is aware of the incident too. If this section is not completed, the form is returned to the line manager to 
carry out the investigation. The Health and Safety Manual System does not detail this process.

Recommendation: 7

Priority 3

The updated Accident Form be detailed in the Health and Safety Management System when the review of the Health 
and Safety Management System commences.

11.14 The Authority uses an external fire safety consultant, Steve Hayward, to carry out annual fire risk assessments. A report is then provided to the Authority and 
actions are given a priority 1, 2 or 3 rating. An example of a report carried by Steve Hayward at Craig Y Nos Country Park was provided during the audit for 
review. The report is also accompanied by an action plan which details the significant findings of the fire risk assessment and their priorities. The action plan 
is monitored by the Authority and addressed at the Health and Safety Working Group meetings. 

P
age 85



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 17

[

11.15 Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) electrical testing is carried out every 12 months at all Authority buildings by an external company, UK Safety Management. 
A certificate is provided to the Authority to confirm that the testing has taken place at each of the locations and the dates are taken from the certificates and 
recorded on a budget spreadsheet. Any items that are deemed as a 'fail' during the testing are disposed of and replaced. A sample of electrical items was 
selected to ensure the PAT testing at Head Quarters had been completed and is in date. The items selected for review all had a sticker displayed with the date 
September 2019 which matched the date on the certificate provided during the review. 

11.16 A Lone Working Policy and Procedural Guidance is in place and the policy applies to all staff who may be working alone, at any time. The Policy was last 
reviewed in April 2006. The policy details mandatory procedures including security of buildings, personal safety and assessment of risk. The Corporate Services 
Officer confirmed that the Education, Planning, Communities departments and the Wardens all have a buddy scheme in place whereby they will send a text 
message to their buddy to confirm that they have arrived safely at their destination when working alone. This is supported by the policy which states that staff 
must inform their line manager or other identified person when they will be working alone and provide accurate details of their location and follow an agreed 
plan to inform that person when the task is completed. This includes occasions when a staff member expects to go home following a visit rather than returning 
to their base.

Recommendation: 8

Priority 2

The Lone Working Policy and Procedural Guidance document be reviewed and updated.

11.17 The Lone Working Policy is supported by a Development Management – Procedure Note - Lone Working which details the procedure Staff and Volunteers 
should follow when working alone. Included in the Procedure Note is the information on the Lone Working Buddy detailed in paragraph 11.156.

Recommendation: 9

Priority 3

The Development Management – Procedure Note – Lone Working be included in the Lone Working Policy when it is 
updated to reduce the number of documents relating to lone working and ensure that all the information is available 
from one document.

11.18 A Driver Handbook is in place which was last reviewed in April 2016. The handbook applies to all employees, including Authority Volunteers, who are driving 
on behalf of the Authority for work, as well as infrequent journeys such as driving to training courses. The Authority has a number of pool cars which are 
available to use providing the user has signed the Driver Declaration form. Staff wishing to use personal vehicles for work purposes must ensure the vehicle 
is covered by a valid MOT certificate and hold business cover insurance on their personal policy. Evidence of these documents must be produced prior to 
making any mileage claims to ensure claims can be processed.

11.19 Driving licence checks are carried out annually by the Corporate Services Officer using the DVLA checking service. A sample of checks was provided during 
the review which were all in date. 

P
age 86



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 18

[

System: Follow Up

12. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of 
these recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of 
the progress of the management actions taken to date have been identified.

Summary of the action taken on Recommendations made

Evaluation Number of Recommendations

Implemented 18

In Process of Being Implemented 4

Revised Target Date -

Considered but not Implemented -

No Longer Applicable -

Not Implemented -

13. The Authority has made good progress in addressing the recommendations raised.  Brecon Beacons National Park Authority has implemented 18 out of 22 (82%) of 
the recommendations reviewed.

14. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations. Only limited testing has been carried out to confirm these 
management representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented.

P
age 87



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 19

[

15. System: Block 1 - GDPR

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented - Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented 1 No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

Audit title Block 1 - GDPR Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2

Recommendation A detailed Data Protection Act 2018 Compliance Plan be documented as intended that details all of the necessary actions that need to 
be completed to ensure full compliance with the Act.

Initial management 
response

Agreed.

Responsible Officer/s IT Manager Original 
implementation date

31/12/2018 Revised 
implementation 
date(s)

N/A

Latest Update This recommendation is in the process of being implemented. The Data Protection Act Compliance Plan has been carried forward from 
the 2018/19 Performance Objectives to the 2019/20 Performance Objectives.

New implementation 
date

TBC for final report Status Outstanding

P
age 88



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 20

[

16. System: Block 1 - Risk Management – Overview

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented 1 Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented 1 No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

Audit title Block 1 - 
Governance  - 
Performance 
Management

Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2

Recommendation All performance indicator owners be required to provide a commentary or performance statistics for each quarterly performance report.

Initial management 
response

All reporting staff are required to enter a comment against each PI on at least a quarterly basis.  Each quarter’s report is reviewed by 
Management team and any strategic issues and actions identified.  Management Team will review the detailed performance data and 
the information supplied by reporting officers on a regular basis to identify and address gaps and issues. A summary report with related 
officer commentary and management team comments is compiled by the IT Manager and reported to the next available Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Responsible Officer/s All reporting officers 
and Management 
Team IT Manager

Original 
implementation date

31/10/2018 Revised 
implementation 
date(s)

N/A

Latest Update This remains under review.  Reporting has improved somewhat but it remains the case that not all comments are completed in a timely 
fashion and reports sometimes require chasing.  Further to the original comments about the role of Management Team, it is likely that 
a new mechanism for monitoring this will be established once the governance review has reported to the Authority.

New implementation 
date

TBC for final report Status Outstanding

P
age 89



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 21

[

17. System: Block 1 - Risk Management – Overview

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented 1 Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented - No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

18. System: Block 2 - Governance – Governance Strategic Control

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented 4 Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented 1 No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

Audit title Block 2 - Governance 
– Governance 
Strategic Control

Audit year 2018/19 Priority 3

Recommendation Terms of Reference be documented for the Management Team.

Initial management 
response

Agreed – CEO is currently reviewing the role of the Management Team and the terms of reference will follow on from this review.

Responsible Officer/s Chief Executive Original 
implementation date

31/03/2019 Revised 
implementation 
date/s

N/A

Latest Update The Management Team has been reviewed and is now the Corporate Governance Team with a changed membership, the Authority is 
undergoing a wider change programme and the Terms of Reference for the Corporate Governance Team will be reviewed once this is 
completed.

New implementation 
date

30/06//20 Status Outstanding

P
age 90



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 22

[

19. System: Block 2 - Key Financial Controls (Budgetary Control, Payroll and Expenses, Fixed Assets)

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented 7 Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented - No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

20. System: Block 2 – Project Management

From the review of the documentation and checks carried out the assessment is:

Implemented 5 Considered but not Implemented -

In Process of Being Implemented 1 No Longer Applicable -

Revised Target Date - Not Implemented -

P
age 91



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Block 2 Review Page 23

[

Audit title Block 2 – Project 
Management

Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2

Recommendation The Grants Policy and Procedure be rewritten and approved by the Management Team

Initial management 
response

Grants policy can be set in broad terms for the whole authority, but some detailed aspects of procedure can be determined by the grant 
funder’s requirements and also the scale of the project.   A policy can be drafted for consideration by Management team, ideally once 
the new Delivery Director is in post to allow an opportunity for him to have an input into its development.  Sustainable Development and 
Natural Resources Team Managers should have an input into the policy as their teams deliver the bulk of grant-funded projects.  Finance 
Manager also has a role to ensure sound financial management and accountability.

Responsible Officer/s Delivery Director, 
Natural Resources 
Team Manager,
Sustainable 
Development 
Manager,
Finance Manager

Original 
implementation date

31/03/2019 Revised 
implementation 
date/s

N/A

Latest Update The Grants Policy needs to be developed in line with the ongoing Change Programme. This recommendation is in the process of being 
implemented. 

New implementation 
date

31/03/20 Status Outstanding

---------------

P
age 92



Performance and Risk Update – quarter 3

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 31 Jan 2020

Report Author P Funnell

Job title Systems and Performance Manager

Contact Details Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To update members on the Authority’s performance and its 
control of risks in the previous quarter. 

Single Integrated 
Assessment

Not applicable

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 – Integrated Assurance Framework

Enclosure 2 – Detailed Performance Report

Enclosure 2 – Detailed Risk Registers – High Risks

Public Interest Test Not applicable

Recommendation(s) a) that Members review the report, query any points 
of interest or concern with officers, and formally 
record their acceptance of it as a fair summary of 
quarter 3 activity

1.1 Overview

Following discussion at the last committee the Integrated Assurance Framework is again presented in its 
revised and simplified format alongside more detailed reports on performance and risk.

Page 93

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk


This revised framework was recently discussed at the Powys Public Service Board scrutiny committee 
meeting, on which the chair of this committee sits, as BBNPA officers lead on performance reporting for 
the PSB.  That meeting was supportive of using the framework to provide high level overview reporting 
for the delivery of the Powys wellbeing plan.  This in itself is a small example of some of the joined up 
working that is happening under the Powys PSB.  

A further example is the work underway on reviewing corporate performance reporting tools and 
technologies with the performance team at Powys.  This will help shape the replacement of the 
Authority’s current performance system which comes to the end of its life in January 2021.  This project 
to provide a new, powerful and accessible performance and evidence platform has been funded by the 
Welsh government.  Members will be able to participate in defining the requirements and shaping the 
final deliverables at Policy Forum meetings later in the year.

The reporting officer is grateful to colleagues, particularly those participating in the reporting process for 
the first time, since this quarter’s reports were received in good time and to a generally high standard.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

a) that Members review the report, query any points of interest or concern 
with officers, and formally record their acceptance of it as a fair summary of  
quarter 3 activity

Page 94



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20
Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter Implications for next quarter

Overall 

RAG status Main Risks Current and planned controls for the risks

Summary 

Risk RAG Recent assurance activity

Heritage

Built heritage

Undertake a programme of 

Conservation Area development 

and review.
A consultation draft for the Crickhowell and Llangattock 

Conservation Area was approved for consultation.  The 

consultation was published on the 28th November.  This 

represents the last of the programme of consultation 

appraisals initiated following LDP adoption.

Officers will spend time refining Crickhowell 

and Llangattock CA for adoption.  Fruther 

work will be undertaken with CC Heritage 

Officers to develop an alternative model of 

CA utilising community volunteers and  CC 

Heritage Officers 

GREEN

Risk associated with meeting the action - 

capacity of the Heritage team to deliver a 

programme of CA appraisal given current 

work loads and priorities around statutory 

processing of Listed Building Applications. 

Failure to meet the action could potentailly 

result in the loss of built heritage assets 

through failure to be protected by CA 

status.  Similarly where out of date 

appraisals exist the basis of our policy (and 

decisions made in accordance with it) could 

fail if challenged at appeal.

Prioritisiation of work load of Built 

Heritage Officers by line managers.  

Rationalisation of planning related work. 

Further joint working with CC to share 

best practice and utilise their inhouse 

expertise to manage community based 

projects.

GREEN
Review of Crickhowell 

and Llangattock 

consultation draft by NPA 

and current consultation 

on proposals with 

stautory bodies of control 

(eg CADW and WG)

Volunteering

Develop a programme increasing 

opportunities for volunteering 

within Heritage sector

No archaeological voluntary work was undertaken this quarter

Based on past experience it is very likely that 

the next quarter will see a further reduction 

in the number of volunteer hours dedicated to 

Heritage as the nature of the work makes 

winter time surveying an unappealing prospect 

for most visitors.  The time could be utilised 

to look at how Officers of the Authority 

could develop the programme with an aim to 

have opportunities for expanded volunteer 

numbers come Quarter 4

GREEN

Capacity of heritage officers to take on the 

management of volunteers given work load 

within statutory planning function. 

Prioritisiation of work load of  Heritage 

Officers by line managers.  Rationalisation 

of planning related work. Further joint 

working with Archaeological Trusts to 

share best practice and utilise their 

inhouse expertise to manage community 

based projects.

GREEN

Place plans
Place Plan development  for 

Brecon supported This quarter has seen the finalisation of the draft action plan 

for Brecon with the aim of presenting to Members for 

February NPA.  Work has also commenced on Llangattock 

and Llangynidr Place Plans. 

Brecon Plan to be presented to NPA for 

consultation on the 11th of February.  

Officers will continue to support individual 

communities in the development of Place 

Plans.  Further work needs to be undertaken 

to understand how the Authority wants to 

progress Place Plans and how that can be 

resourced.

GREEN

Temporary project support by NPA officer 

(WG funded) is driving the process. 

Ongoing officer support essential to finalise 

plan WG funding for role until September 2020

GREEN Brecon Town Plan has 

been assessed by external 

stakeholders.  Range of 

parnters aiding in the 

delivery of the site.

Actions/Status Risks and Controls

Conserve and 

enhnace the 

cultural heritage 

of the Park's 

communities 

including the use 

of the Welsh 

Langauage; Built 

Heritage and the 

Historic 

Environment.

Tracy 

Nettleton

Details

P
age 95



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20
Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter Implications for next quarter

Overall 

RAG status Main Risks

Current and planned 

controls for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Landscape and 

Biodiversity

Develop plans Finalise the NRAP

Update January 13th 2020:  Vital Signs project 

development contract has submitted draft 

outputs (grant applications, rationales, job 

descriptions, draft budgets etc.); S6 report 

compiled, submitted to NPA and to Minister; 

acknowledgement received.  LNP governance 

being formalised; LNP Development Officer 

post in preparation to be recruited during 

early 2020; ecological network mapping 

rationale being finalised; NRAP budget (several 

unfunded pressures grants and other sums) 

now allocated or committed.  NRW's strategic 

partnership funding will be launched in April 

2020 to support works in line with Area 

Statements; is likely to be a commissioning 

model.  State of Nature data being reviewed 

and new data being commissioned (e.g., BTO 

bird data!!).

Habitat network mapping and State of Nature report 

work underway (Corporate objectives); also awaiting 

outputs from Reading University's landscape 

modelling.  Presentation from VWT due on their 

habitat suitability and permeability modelling (species-

based); meeting scheduled for ERAMMP and 

designated landscapes' data needs December.  

Update January 13th 2020:  Vital Signs outputs will 

be presented to LNP for signing off and moving 

towards grant applications, which if successful will 

lead to three new posts, one of which to be hosted 

here.  ERAMMP meeting postponed until February 

2020.  Is real possibility for a real and strong survey 

and monitoring programme but the Authority overall 

needs to make space and time for this.

GREEN

Staff time, data, 

methodologies.  Update 

January 13th 2020:  

organisational restructure 

adds significant new risk by 

reducing staff capacity and 

increasing uncertainty over 

future working relationship 

with warden service and 

future ecological capacity, 

expertise and relationship 

management.

Regular team planning by 

Ecology team.  Update 

January 13th 2020:  but 

regular team planning is not 

sufficient; organisation overall 

needs to be readjusted to 

increase NRAP delivery.

AMBER

Agree 

priorities

Prioritise the NRAP actions, 

including the five key actions.

Update January 13th 2020: Two position 

statements drafted, discussed at Policy Forum 

and adopted by NPA; a third, on peatlands, 

rivers and wetlands, is drafted.  A lot of work 

continues on peatland restoration - BMLUP, 

Welsh Peatlands Project, Waun Fignen Felen, 

with discussions underway with NRW on 

future funding options.

LNP governance will be resolved.  BBNPA has a 

useful NRAP budget, which will be offered as 

leverage towards larger funding; "Vital Signs project 

development" also underway (ENRAW project 

development grant), with review meetings scheduled; 

final outputs due February 2020.  Update January 

13th 2020:  the two new position statements, which 

demand leadership, need to be adopted and pushed 

forwards now by CGT and SLG.  Further 

opportunities for more capital funding will continue 

to make life difficult given staffing constraints.

GREEN

Seeking agreement, which is a 

low risk.  Higher risk is 

securing sufficient will to act.  

Update January 13th 2020:  

organisational restructure 

adds significant new risk by 

reducing staff capacity and 

increasing uncertainty over 

future working relationship 

with warden service and 

future ecological capacity, 

expertise and relationship 

management.

Will be achieved by agreeing 

priorities from the actions 

agreed already, and by 

agreeing governance.  Is a 

role for Members to work 

with partner organisations' 

boards and trustees, and 

Directors to work with 

partners' equivalents, to 

secure high level 

collaboration.

AMBER

Engagement 

and 

communicatio

ns

NRAP communications plan 

suitable for LNP use

Update January 13th 2020:  Delayed owing to 

uncertainties over corporate communications.

Internal meeting scheduled for NY to finalise the plan 

once LNP governance is finalised and priorities 

agreed.

AMBER

Main risk, of unclear internal 

lines of communication, now 

resolved.  Lead role is 

Bronwen and Sunita working 

with Rebecca and Nicky.

Governance structure 

agreement, and priorities 

agreed, and clear internal 

lines of communication. GREEN

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Develop and 

deliver a Nature 

Recovery Action 

Plan - ‘A Future 

with Nature at 

its Heart’ to 

restore wildlife 

and habitats and 

build a network 

of resilient and 

better connected 

ecosystems 

within the 

National Park

Paul 

Sinnadurai

Details

P
age 96



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter

Implications for next 

quarter

Overall RAG 

status Main Risks

Current and planned 

controls for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Public 

transport 

promotion

Information provision on non-car 

transport options to enable wider 

access

Public transport information on new website

AMBER
Limited resources within team 

and overall Authority remit 

make it hard to deliver to 

expectations Manage expectations

AMBER

Schools 

inclusion 

activity

Fairplay project (transport funds for 

schools to have an educational visit 

to the National Park)
Schools booked in for this quarter and next 

quarter.

Strong interest from 

schools and bookings 

made through the rest of 

the academic year. There 

is high demand as the 

new curricula moves 

GREEN

Schools booking and we then 

don't have the staff to deliver 

following departure of 2 

Education Officers and 'at risk' 

status on staff consultation. Managing bookings carefully. 

AMBER

On-going management.

Active aging 

and small steps

Active Ageing and Small Steps projects on 

track

GREEN

SDF Projects
To date 26 projects awarded SDF funding 

for projects in 2019/20

Funding ratio continues to exceed target.

GREEN

Projects failing attract all 

match funding to start & 

spend to profile inc. in year. 

Possibly 2 projects  in this 

position  in Q3

In grant award letter projects 

are advised that match 

funding must be in place 

within 3 months or project 

will be subject to SDF panel 

review

GREEN

Waterfalls 

Country

Integrated project delivering in 19/20 and 

developing partnership and external 

funding eoi and bid
Some issues over the partnership developing.  

Delays due to staff absence over the summer.

Ongoing work 

programme. November 

eoi submission

GREEN

Key partner involvement

Officers are engaging direct 

with each partner

GREEN

Get Into the 

Beacons 

project

Training project for NEET young people 

with Princes Trust. Cohort 5 completed Dec 12th 2019. Project 

reporting and claim due 29th Jan 2020

Delivery until 13.12.19 

then evaluation & report.

GREEN

Temporary Supervisor cover,

Internal secondment  to role 

for Cohort 5

GREEN

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Collaborate to 

identify key 

challenges and 

progress 

innovative 

solutions for 

sustainable living 

in the National 

Park

Ceri Bevan

Enable a diverse 

cross section of 

society to gain 

health and 

wellbeing 

benefits from the 

National Park

Ceri Bevan/ 

Sunita Welch

Resilient Communities - Objective 2

Resilient Communities - Objective 1

Details

P
age 97



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter

Implications for next 

quarter

Overall RAG 

status Main Risks

Current and planned controls 

for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Organisational and 

governance review

Reviewing internal structures and 

the governance structure to ensure 

they are fit for purpose

Results of governance survey taken to NPA 

and action plan agreed, to be monitored by CG 

working group

Implementing agreed 

changes

GREEN Poor staff communications

Regulatory burden capacity 

implications

Email updates, staff briefings, 

role of SMF, review of 

reporting requirements

GREEN

Ongoing and recent 

communication activity

Policy Forum

Encouraging all members to 

contribute to the business of the 

Policy Forum Any lack of contribution to be picked up in 

member PDRs

Pending governance 

review recommendations

GREEN

Member availability

Capacity of meetings to deal 

with business at hand for LDP 

and NPMP as well as other 

issues

Forward planning of timetable 

and agenda

AMBER

Gathering evidence

Building the evidence base to 

support policy development and 

decision making

Piecemeal review of SoPR carried out by 

skeleton project team and LDP team.  Still 

needs considerably more work.  Change 

programme establishing foundations for the 

future, however, revised interim approach now 

More robust approach to 

project to be implented 

ASAP.

RED

Officer capacity, access to data

New project approach, 

escalating unfulfilled requests

RED CEO and Project Manager 

review has identified the 

approach needed for Q4

Communications 

plan

Produce and commence delivery of 

a clear engagement strategy and 

supporting communication plan(s) 

which links delivery and advocacy, 

setting out our stall

Draft communication strategy produced and 

discussed but needs substantial further revision 

following departure of officer.  2 position 

statements agreed as a basis for extenal comms 

strategy and prioritisation, and another in draft.

Strategy to be finalised 

and agreed

RED

Capacity to progress in the 

absence of a lead officer

Recruit to appropriate post 

as part of change programme 

implementation

AMBER

Development of position 

statement approach

Advocacy work
Using success to gain political 

support and resources

Ongoing meetings with WG officials has 

resulted in a more favourable indicative draft 

budget for 20/21 and indications for further 

tranches of capital funding from Welsh 

government.

Draft budget 

announcement and 

additional funding 

potential has implications 

for the implementation 

of the change 

programme.

AMBER

Insufficient strategic 

prioritisation of funds and bids See objective 3, below

AMBER

Develop clear 

future priorities

Establish clear strategic priorities 

against which to develop & design 

new projects Work on this has been on hold due to lead 

officer absence and consultation phase on new 

structure proposals.

Revisiting and completing 

work of first two 

quarters in light of final 

decision on structure 

and revised change 

programme

AMBER

Projects developed outside 

new process.  Officers not 

committed to new priorities 

and collective responsibility for 

them.

All Senior Managers and 

Managers briefed about new 

process & requirement for it 

to be followed

AMBER

Revision of draft project 

development process 

documents in line with 

new work programmes & 

focus areas

Align project 

reporting with new 

work programmes 

& focus areas

Integrate new work programmes & 

focus areas as key criteria into 

project output & outcomes 

reporting
Work on this has been on hold due to lead 

officer absence and consultation phase on new 

structure proposals.

New model to be 

developed based on this 

framework and lessons 

learned at PSB.  Funding 

secured for replacement 

of current Corporate 

Performance 

Management system.

AMBER

Lack of alignment prevents 

effective reporting of project 

outputs and outcomes against 

new priorities

Review of project reporting 

to involve lead project 

officers to obtain buy in & 

support

AMBER

Confirmation of NPMP 

review process to align 

with work programmes

Develop revised 

project evaluation 

process

Align future project evaluation 

process with new priorities & 

feedback learning into ongoing 

project development

Work on this has been on hold due to lead 

officer absence and consultation phase on new 

structure proposals.

Review of process and 

live testing of it with a 

new round of proposals 

to be carried out early in 

Q4 aligned to WG 

communications re: 

budget

AMBER

Lack of effective evaluation 

process prevents clear 

understanding of success of 

projects against stated 

objectives & ongoing 

organisational learning to 

feedback into future project 

development

Development of revised 

evaluation process to involve 

lead project officers & other 

relevant colleagues to obtain 

buy in & support

AMBER

Review of current project 

outcomes against emerging 

new priorities as part of 

change programme, with 

identification of priority 

projects as a result 

(shared with Members at 

Policy Forum)

Visitor sites 

development plan
Flagship site proposal

Report on NPVC proposals rejected at NPA, 

further to work to be undertaken by officers in 

conjunction with revised property working 

group.

Clearer plan needs to be 

articulated in relation to 

the various funding 

strands which have been 

secured (e.g. green 

growth fund, play area 

funding, etc.)

RED
The Authority's position in 

relation to NPVC proposals is 

not well-aligned to the funding 

which has been made available 

by WG.

CEO will need to lead 

discussion with Members on 

decisions going forward.

RED

Member decision at NPA 

indicative of weak 

assurance on this matter

Telling our story
Public Engagement Strategy on hold 

until new priorities confirmed

Encapsulated in response above under 

objective 2

RED

The Authority's engagement 

with communities and 

stakholders around important 

work and strategic planning is 

inadequate.

See objective 2.  Policy 

officers group working on 

communication plan for LDP 

and NPMP.

RED

Visitor sites 

strategic plan
Overall plan awaiting as above

Encapsulated in response under Visitor sites 

development plan

RED RED

Organisation and Governance - Objective 2

The Authority is 

recognised for 

the quality of its 

decision-making 

and governance

Julian Atkins

Actions/Status Risks and Controls

Organisation and Governance - Objective 1

Details

Sunita Welch

To improve the 

way we 

communicate 

our work

Julian Atkins

Organisation and Governance - Objective 3

Organisation and Governance - Objective 4

To define a 

programme for 

developing the 

Authority’s public 

facing property 

assets to help the 

Authority tell the 

National Park 

stories in 

inspirational ways

Paul Funnell 

(for Delivery 

Director)

To improve the 

way we select, 

design, 

implement and 

evaluate projects

P
age 98



BBNPA - Integrated Assurance Framework 2019/20

Assurances

Corporate 

Objective Lead Officer Project/ Action Description Activity this quarter

Implications for next 

quarter

Overall RAG 

status Main Risks

Current and planned 

controls for the risks

Summary Risk 

RAG Recent assurance activity

Tourism 

business 

engagement

Several projects & workstreams 

including Day to Stay, Geopark 

marketing

> Day to Stay working well despite issues with 

videos being delayed due to weather.  >  

Atlantic Geopark (AGP)  Officer came to end 

of budgeted contract but several items are 

outstanding and will be delivered by core staf 

and partners.                                   > Atlantic 

Culturescape (AGP) initiated in November                                            

> Ambassadors continues to be successful in 

engaging busineses in NP messages.       > 

Moutnains & Moorlands Ambassadors 

concluded with 56 businesses trained in 

undertanding the management of the uplands.

> D2S: More project 

implementation to plan > 

AGP: work on 

handbook, charter and 

App                         > 

ACS: project 

implementation - 

especially developing 

partnerships with 

businesses                 > 

Abrs: more courses 

planned                    > 

M&M: project concluded.

GREEN

Core astaff time.  Promotion 

not reaching target group

Good partnership working.  

Social media plan agreed

Green

Project claims approved

Sustainable 

desintation 

partnership

Maintain and develop Partnership 

working especially with business 

sector through regular Board and 

Delivery Group meetings as well as 

Task and Finish groups.

Web Site successfully launched. Social media 

agreement at final stages. Partnership Board 

meetings suspended until Change programme 

concluded.  Delivery Group continues to meet.

Staff time needed to 

continue to progress 

site.  Organise Board & 

Delivery group meetings 

once change programme 

determined.  

AMBER

Destination website - on-going 

capacity of staff.  Partnerhsip 

structures are dependent on 

staff time being available. 

Team working closely 

togetherand with partners..

amber

On going monitoring of 

website and social media 

performance.

Visitor 

experience

Enhance Visitor Experience through 

high quality interpretation and 

information.   Support local walking 

festivals and centre-based 

opportunities

>  Waterfalls project progressing well with 

Board meetings well attended and progress 

being made on the ground.  Community 

meeting held and communication with local 

people much improved.                           > 

Wales Way:  Planning permission granted for 

all major aspects of A470 work.  

Implementation in hand.  Digital wall at 

advanced stage.  Llangors Toilets largely 

complete.

> Waterfalls: Continue 

to develop plans for the 

future of the Waterfalls 

and engagement of 

community through new 

Waterfalls Futures 

funded project.          > 

Wales Way: final stages 

of implementation

GREEN

Lack of community 

engagement.  Poor partner 

engagement/delivery.  

High engagment in partners 

and community.

green

Welsh Audit Office report 

on Waterfalls project.  

Claims for Wales way.

Risks and ControlsActions/Status

Richard 

Tyler/ Sunita 

Welch

Work with key 

partner 

organisations to 

promote and 

support 

sustainable 

income 

generating 

opportunities in 

the National 

Park while 

preserving the 

special natural 

and cultural 

qualities of the 

NP

Details

Sustainable Economic Development

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

Corporate Plan 
2019/20 

 

       
 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

1 Heritage 
 

 

    

 

       

 

 Overall Measure RAG  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

  

 

   

      

       

 

Measure Description Owner Current Period 01 December 2019 

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment 

1.1.5 Education Programme  Sunita Welch 140.00 75.00 Green   

 
 

  

       

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

1.1.1 
Ambassadors 
- language 
and culture 

1.1.1 Further 
develop the 
Ambassador 
programme to 
promote Welsh 
Language and 
culture 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

On Track 50 

Green 

 
 

 

Language and culture 
ambassador module 
developed. Programme 
of delivery planned 

1.1.2 
Ambassadors 
- Industrial 
heritage 

1.1.2 Further 
develop the 
Ambassador 
programme to 
promote 
industrial 
heritage 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

Behind 10 

Amber 

 
 

 

Planned inception 
meeting scheduled for 
end of November 
cancelled due to 
staffing uncertainty re: 
change program 

1.1.3 
Sustainable 
Development 
Fund 

1.1.3 Support 
national park 
and community 
projects 
promoting 
heritage 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

Behind 30 

Amber 

 
 

 

Work on action 
suspended due to 
proposed cuts to SDF 
and change program. 

1.1.4 
Volunteering 

1.1.4 Develop a 
programme 
increasing 
opportunities for 
volunteering 
within Heritage 
sector 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

On Time 20 

Green 

 
 

 

Archaeological 
volunteer program 
underway and officers 
are progressing the 
development of the 
program. Capacity of 
Archaeologist restricts 
further development of 
the program 

1.1.6 Built 
heritage 

1.1.6 Develop a 
programme 
increasing 
conservation 
areas within the 
NP and ensure 
all current 
conservation 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

On Track 80 

Green 

 
 

 

Llangattock and 
Crickhowell 
Conservation Area 
Appraisals were 
published for 
consultation late 
November. NPA 

 

Page 101



area appraisals 
are up to date. 

ratification is planned 
for March this year. 

1.1.7 Built 
heritage & 
Wardens' 
programme 

1.1.7 Joint 
project between 
heritage and 
wardens to 
maintain and 
enhance 
cultural and built 
heritage within 
NP ownership 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

On Track  

Green 

 
 

 

Work has commenced 
on the development of 
a draft action plan for 
Pen y Crug (BR063) 
and Damage 
assessment of Maen 
Mawr (BR071)Work is 
progressing on a 
project relating to metal 
detecting on Authority 
owned Heritage 
Assets. Metal Detector 
Policy for Authority 
owned sites drafted 
and proposed for 
agreement by NPA 

1.1.8 Place 
Plans 

1.1.8 Develop a 
programme to 
provide grant 
funding for 
place based 
heritage 
projects 

Tracy 
Nettleton 

Matt 
Scanlon 

In 
Progress 

Behind 40 

Amber 

 
 

 

Brecon Place Plan 
action in relation to 
heritage buildings 
progressing. This 
potentially could 
become a model for 
future place plan 
development around 
the historic built 
environment 

 

       

 

   

Page 102



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

Corporate Plan 
2019/20 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

2 Landscape and Biodiversity 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

2.1.1 Nature 
Recovery - 
develop plans 

2.1.1 Work with 
Local Nature 
Partnership 
members to 
develop nature 
recovery delivery 
plans 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

In 
Progress 

On Time 90 

Green 

 
 

 

Vital Signs project 
development contract 
has submitted draft 
outputs (grant 
applications, rationales, 
job descriptions, draft 
budgets etc.); S6 report 
compiled, submitted to 
NPA and to Minister; 
acknowledgement 
received. LNP 
governance being 
formalised; LNP 
Development Officer 
post in preparation to 
be recruited during 
early 2020; ecological 
network mapping 
rationale being 
finalised; NRAP budget 
(several unfunded 
pressures grants and 
other sums) now 
allocated or 
committed.NRW's 
strategic partnership 
funding will be 
launched in April 2020 
to support works in line 
with Area Statements; 
is likely to be a 
commissioning model. 
State of Nature data 
being reviewed and 
new data being 
commissioned (e.g., 
BTO bird data!!). 

2.1.2 Nature 
Recovery - 
agree priorities 

2.1.2 Agree the 
priority 
ecosystems and 
constituent 
habitats/sites for 
NRAP delivery 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

In 
Progress 

On Time 50 

Green 

 
 

 

Two position 
statements drafted, 
discussed at Policy 
Forum and adopted by 
NPA; a third, on 
peatlands, rivers and 
wetlands, is drafted. A 

 

Page 103



lot of work continues 
on peatland restoration 
- BMLUP, Welsh 
Peatlands Project, 
Waun Fignen Felen, 
with discussions 
underway with NRW on 
future funding options. 

2.1.3 Nature 
Recovery - 
engagement 
and 
communications 

2.1.3 Develop a 
public 
engagement and 
communications 
plan to raise 
awareness about 
nature recovery, 
garner support 
and sound the 
'call for action' 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Sunita 
Welch 

In 
Progress 

Behind 45 

Amber 

 
 

 

On-going staff capacity 
challenges. Partner 
capacity also a 
challenge. 

2.1.4 Vital signs 
project 

2.1.4 Work with 
partners to 
finalise the 
project 
application 
surveillance and 
monitoring 
programme for 
the Brecon 
Beacons National 
Park 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

In 
Progress 

Ahead 90 

Green 

 
 

 

Project outputs drafted 
in support of full grant 
applications - grant 
rationales, job 
descriptions, budgets 
etc. If funded 
successfully, BBNPA 
will lead the way in the 
UK on using the vital 
signs approach - 
monitoring the 
ecological health of the 
Park. 

2.1.5 State of 
Nature Report 

2.1.5 Agree the 
priorities and 
evidence 
requirements for 
the State of 
Nature Report 
and ecological 
network maps 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

In 
Progress 

Behind 20 

Amber 

 
 

 

Delivery timetable tied 
to SoPR timetable. 

2.1.6 Asset 
management 
register 

2.1.6 Complete 
asset register and 
condition 
assessment 
across Authority-
owned land 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Complete On Time 100 

Green 

 
 

 

Recommendations 
discussed by Policy 
Forum; pending officer 
review prior to 
submission to full NPA. 
Implementation of 
recommendations tied 
to structural review. 

2.1.7 Asset 
management 
plan 

2.1.7 Produce 
updated Asset 
Management 
Plan 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

Complete On Time 100 

Green 

 
 

 

Recommendations 
discussed by Policy 
Forum; pending officer 
review prior to 
submission to full NPA. 
Implementation of 
recommendations tied 
to structural review. 

 

      

    

Page 104



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

3 Resilient Communities 

 

       

 

Overall Measure RAG 
 

 

Overall Risk RAG 
 

 

Overall Action RAG 
 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

3.1 Health and Wellbeing 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall Status Progress 
Status 

% Complete RAG Trend Comment 

3.1.1 Social Inclusion Plan 
monitoring 

3.1.1 Social Inclusion and Child Poverty position 
statement, policy and delivery of actions including 
those in the Inspironment and Small Steps projects 

Julian Atkins Ceri Bevan In Progress On Time 75 

Green 
 

 

 

3 Parks Position statement - draft 
version has been amended with 
comments from BBNPA NPA 
November NPA . 

3.1.2 Health and Wellbeing actions 3.1.2 Health and Well-being policy and delivery of 
actions including those in the Active Aging and Small 
Steps projects 

Julian Atkins Ceri Bevan In Progress On Time 75 
Green 

 
 

 

Active Ageing and Small Steps 
projects on track 

3.1.3 Public Transport Promotion 3.1.3 Information provision on non-car transport 
options to enable wider access 

Julian Atkins Ceri Bevan In Progress Behind 40 
Amber  

 

 

Public transport information on 
new website 

3.1.4 Schools inclusion activity 3.1.4 Deliver the education programme, including 
Fairplay transport subsidy for high Free School 
Meals % schools 

Sunita Welch Lora Davies In Progress  50 
Green 

 
 

 

Bookings taken for new year. Dec 
always quiet because of weather 
and short term. 

3.1.6 Upland Path repairs 3.1.6 Deliver the year's upland path project work in 
BMs and Central Beacons; continue to develop the 
Upland Volunteer teams. 

Paul  Sinnadurai Paul  Sinnadurai In Progress On Time 90 

Green 

 
 

 

A range of practical measures and 
upland path survey underway and 
programmed throughout the year. 
The major practical works are 
within the BMLUP and for the 
Central Beacons (WG unfunded 
pressures grant). This work is 
always very weather-dependent, 
therefore reported more accurately 
on an annual basis. Air lifts 
underway from September. 

3.1.7 Destination Website 3.1.7 Destination Website launched and evaluated 
throughout the year. 

Sunita Welch Sunita Welch In Progress Late 95 
Green  

 

 

Site successfully launched. Work 
still (and will always be) required. 

3.1.8 Public Engagement Actions 3.1.8 Education and Interpretation - communities 
worked with and stories told - including: Gunpowder 
works, Black Mountains LUP, Wales way. NPA and 
Destination website. 

Sunita Welch Sunita Welch In Progress Behind 10 

Amber 
 

 

 

New structure proposals out for 
consultation. 

 

 

      

    

Page 105



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

3 Resilient 
Communities 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

3.2 Sustainable Living 
 

 

    

 

       

 

 Overall Measure RAG  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

  

 

   

      

       

 

Measure Description Owner Current Period 01 December 2019 

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment 

BBCOM1iii The 
public ratio as a 
result of SDF, 
including in kind 
contributions 

 Julian 
Atkins 

324.00 200.00 

Green 

  

 

 

  

       

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

3.2.2 Visitor 
Management 
Waterfalls 
Country 

3.2.2 Develop 
partnership 
interventions and 
messages to respond 
effectively to visitor 
pressure. 
Collaboratively 
explore mechanisms 
for ownership and 
direct community 
benefit from footfall. 
Identifying potential 
for and develop 
landscape scale 
funding app 

Clare 
Parsons 

Clare 
Parsons 

In 
Progress 

Behind 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Some issues 
over the 
partnership 
developing. 
Delays due to 
staff absence 
over the summer. 

3.2.4 Deliver 
Get Into the 
Brecon 
Beacons skills 
project with 
Princes Trust 

3.2.4 Skills 
programme for NEET 
young people with 
Princes Trust Cymru 

Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

In 
Progress 

On Time 92 

Green 

 
 

 

Cohort 5 
completed Dec 
12th 2019. 
Project reporting 
and claim due 
29th Jan 2020 

3.2.5 Seek 
funding for 
further skills 
projects 

3.2.5 To meet 
identified need and  
deliver NPA's 
evidenced ability to fill 
this gap 

Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

Not 
Started 

Behind 10 

Amber 

 
 

 

as previously 
reported - not 
started due to 
paused econ & 
soc work during 
organisational 
change 
programme 

3.2.6 Explore 
innovative 
housing 
solutions 

3.2.6 For lower 
earners not eligible for 
social housing -to 
retain people in 
communities 

Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

Not 
Started 

Behind  

Red 

 
 

 

awaiting 
decisions on 
future priorities 

 

Page 106



Deliver Place 
Plans WG 
funded project 

 Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

In 
Progress 

On Time 70 

Green 

 
 

 

Started 
Llangynidr place 
plan. Brecon - 
draft 
supplementary 
planning 
guidance going to 
NPA Feb 2020 

 

       

 

   

Page 107



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

Corporate Plan 
2019/20 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

4 Sustainable Economic Development 
 

 

    

 

       

 

 Overall Measure RAG  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

  

 

   

      

       

 

Measure Description Owner Current Period 01 December 2019 

Actual Target RAG Trend Comment 

BBCOM1iii The 
public ratio as a 
result of SDF, 
including in kind 
contributions 

 Julian 
Atkins 

324.00 200.00 

Green 

  

 

 

  

       

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

4.1.01 
Sustainable 
economic 
policy 

4.1.01 Produce a 
policy to support a 
sustainable 
economy as part of 
NPMP and LDP 
processes and LDP 
and linked to actions 
and baseline 
evaluation 

Clare 
Parsons 

Clare 
Parsons 

In 
Progress 

On Time 30 

Green 

 
 

 

Combined with 
community policy - 
due to go to 
members in Q4 

4.1.02 Brecon 
BID 

4.1.02 Support 
development of 
Brecon BID 
Business 
Improvement Plan 
whilst ensuring 
businesses respect 
environmental 
constraints 

Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

In 
Progress 

On Time 75 

Green 

 
 

 

BID ballot 
commences Jan 
2020 with result in 
end of Feb 2020. 

4.1.03 Deliver 
Place Plans 
WG funded 
project 

 Julian 
Atkins 

Ceri 
Bevan 

In 
Progress 

On Time 70 

Green 

 
 

 

Started Llangynidr 
place plan. Brecon 
- draft 
supplementary 
planning guidance 
going to NPA Feb 
2020 

4.1.05 
Sustainable 
local food 
economy 

4.1.05 Work with 
farmers and 
producers to 
enhance the quality 
and quantity of local 
food availability 
through the ABC 
project if approved. 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

Late 50 

Amber 

 
 

 

Project has final 
approval. 
Implementation 
dependent on 
Change 
programme. 

 

Page 108



4.1.06 
Sustainable 
Destination 
Partnership 

4.1.06 Maintain and 
develop Partnership 
working especially 
with business sector 
through regular 
Board and Delivery 
Group meetings as 
well as Task and 
Finish groups. 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

Overdue Behind  

Amber 

 
 

 

Key member of 
staff off sick 

4.1.07 
FforestFawr 
UNESCO 
Global 
Geopark 

4.1.07 Maintain and 
develop Geopark 
programme using it 
to realise benefits 
from the different 
offer in the west 
building on its 
natural and cultural 
heritage 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

On Time 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Interreg project 
now stabilised with 
new project plan 
approved. Plans for 
re-validation in 
place. 

4.1.08 Visit 
Wales 
Partnership 
work 

4.1.08 Bring local 
benefit from Visit 
Wales programmes: 
The Year of 
Discovery and 
Wales Way 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

On Time 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Videos delayed by 
weather but all 
other elements 
proceeding well 

4.1.09 
National Park  
marketing 
work 

4.1.09 Develop 
marketing 
partnership working: 
Work with public and 
private sector 
partners to deliver 
website, social 
media, print and PR 
to benefit the 
destination 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 

Green 

 
 

 

New website 
launched. Social 
media agreement 
in fine stages. 
Partnership 
working well. 

4.1.10 
Tourism 
Business 
Engagement 
Actions 

4.1.10 Develop 
business 
engagement through 
Ambassador and 
Business Training 
programme and one 
off events 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

On Time 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Ambassadors on 
track. Day to stay 
on track 

4.1.11 Visitor 
Experience 

4.1.11 Enhance 
Visitor Experience 
through high quality 
interpretation and 
information.   
Support local 
walking festivals and 
centre-based 
opportunities 

Sunita 
Welch 

Sunita 
Welch 

In 
Progress 

Behind 60 

Green 

 
 

 

Some delays to 
Wales Way as 
planning consent 
required (and 
gained). Staff 
capacity an on-
going challenge. 

4.1.12 
Tourism 
Projects 

4.1.12 Deliver 
externally funded 
projects once 
approved: Atlantic 
Geoparks Interreg, 
Craig Y Nos 
Geopark Hub and 
Wales Way capital 
project 

Richard 
Tyler 

Richard 
Tyler 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Projects 
progressing with 
limited delays and 
obstuctions 

 

       

    

Page 109



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

5 Organisation and 
Governance 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

5.1 Decision making and governance 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

Business 
Planning - 
governance 

5.1.7 Streamline 
business and 
governance 
arrangements by 
reviewing 
agendas and 
reports 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julia 
Gruffydd 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Ongoing work to 
manage items going to 
NPA and Policy Forum 
to make most effective 
use of time 

Business 
Planning - 
structure 

5.1.8 Bring 
forward 
proposals for 
further structural 
changes, revised 
financial model 
and associated 
work plans 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julian 
Atkins 

In 
Progress 

Behind 65 

Amber 

 
 

 

Staff consultation 
completed but change 
of circumstances is 
leading to further work. 
EGM scheduled for 24 
Jan. 

Gathering 
Evidence 

5.1.3 Building the 
evidence base to 
support policy 
development and 
decision making 

Julian 
Atkins 

Paul  
Funnell 

In 
Progress 

Behind 75 

Amber 

 
 

 

Substantive progress 
aligned to change 
programme. Gap 
analysis scheduled for 
SoPR in early Jan. 

Key Work 
Areas 

5.1.2 
Empowering and 
embedding the 
Key Work Area 
Groups 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julia 
Gruffydd 

In 
Progress 

On Track 50 

Green 

 
 

 

The Gov WG 
recommended 
establishing a Policy 
Working Group to 
allow members and 
officers to progress the 
detail of key strategic 
documents. Approved 
by NPA on 10/12/19. 
Delivery Working 
Group or similar 
delayed until outcome 
of change programme. 

Member 
Development 

5.1.6 Making 
best use of 
Members’ skills 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julia 
Gruffydd 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Attendance down due 
to only 10 members 
able to attend two day 
NPW seminar in 
Snowdonia and a 
clash with LA meetings 
for the heritage visit. 

Organisational 
and 

5.1.4 Reviewing 
internal 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julia 
Gruffydd 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 
Green  

 

 

Governance action 
plan being 

 

Page 110



Governance 
Review 

structures and 
the governance 
structure to 
ensure they are 
fit for purpose 

implemented and 
monitored by the Gov 
Working Group. Some 
elements delayed until 
outcome of Change 
Programme known 

Policy Forum 5.1.1 
Encouraging all 
members to 
contribute to the 
business of the 
Policy Forum 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julia 
Gruffydd 

In 
Progress 

On Track 75 

Green 

 
 

 

Review of new 
structures has 
recommended another 
body to take some 
LDP/NPMP work off 
Policy Forum so a 
Policy WG now 
established. Support 
for forum from 
members during the 
review of new 
structures. 

 

      

 

   

Page 111



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

5 Organisation and 
Governance 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

5.2 Understanding and awareness 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

Advocacy work 5.2.2 Using success 
to gain political 
support and 
resources 

Julian 
Atkins 

Sunita 
Welch 

In 
Progress 

Behind 25 

Amber 

 
 

 

Two positions 
statements adopted 
and one more in 
draft. 
Representations 
made to WG in 
relation to budget 
have been well 
received. 

Communications 
Plan 

5.2.1 Produce and 
commence delivery 
of a clear 
engagement 
strategy and 
supporting 
communication 
plan(s) which links 
delivery and 
advocacy, setting 
out our stall 

Julian 
Atkins 

Sunita 
Welch 

In 
Progress 

Behind 75 

Amber 

 
 

 

Draft 
communications 
plan produced but 
requires final edit. 
Further work 
delayed due to 
departure of 
communications 
officer. 

 

 

      

    

Page 112



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

5 Organisation and 
Governance 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

5.3 Project management 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

Project 
approvals 
and 
prioritisation 

5.3.1 Design a 
process for 
approving 
projects 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julian 
Atkins 

Complete On Time 100 

Green 
 

 

 

Prioritisation process 
completed for existing 
projects. 

Project 
outcome 
evaluation 

5.3.2 Establish 
a methodology 
for evaluating 
the success of 
projects 

Julian 
Atkins 

Julian 
Atkins 

In 
Progress 

Behind 50 

Amber 

 
 

 

Has not progress on track 
due to illness and 
subsequent departure of 
lead officer, however, 
meeting scheduled for 
early in the new year to 
review process and next 
round of proposals. 
Proposals for interim 
arrangements to be 
considered at EGM on 24 
Jan. 

 

 

      

    

Page 113



 

Performance Report 
 

 

    

          

5 Organisation and 
Governance 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

5.4 Asset management 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Measure  Overall Action RAG  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Action Outcome Owner Updater Current Period 01 December 2019 

Overall 
Status 

Progress 
Status 

% 
Complete 

RAG Trend Comment 

Development 
Plan for our 
Visitor sites 

5.4.3 Produce a 
site specific plan 
for the National 
Park Visitor 
Centre 

Sunita 
Welch 

Sunita 
Welch 

In 
Progress 

Behind 50 

Red 

 
 

 

NPVC plans rejected by 
members at NPA in 
Dec. Investment plans 
to be reconsidered in 
light of wider 
prioritisation work. 

Telling our 
Story 

5.4.1 Install a 
new interactive 
interpretation 
screen at the 
National Park 
Visitor Centre 

Julian 
Atkins 

Sunita 
Welch 

Overdue Behind  

Amber 

 
 

 

Departure of Delivery 
Director and Comms 
Officer (press and 
media). 

Visitor sites 
strategic plan 

5.4.2 Produce a 
strategic plan for 
the Authority’s 
principal visitor 
facing assets. 

Sunita 
Welch 

Paul  
Sinnadurai 

In 
Progress 

On Track 50 

Green 

 
 

 

Asset register and 
gazetteer, and asset 
mgmt plan completed; 
latter with 
recommendations to 
Authority on 
retention/disposal of 
assets. 

 

 

      

  

 

 

Page 114



 
 

High Scoring Risks 
 

 

    

          

Risk Register CEO 
CorpServ 

 

       
 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

Corporate Governance risks 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Overall Risk RAG  

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Risk Description Current Period January 2020 

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance 

02 - 
Members' 
compliance 
with code 
of conduct 

Reputation 
and financial 
impacts 

Likely Severe 

Red 

  

 Mandatory, 
wide-ranging 
refresher training 
on code of 
conduct to be 
delivered in Jan 
by MO and 
possibly external 
input 

 Adjudication 
panel finding 
re: long 
standing 
conduct issue 

Standards 
Committee, 
Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 
for Wales 

18 - 
Financial 
constraint 

Constraint on 
Authority’s 
ability to 
deliver 
objectives and 
services due 
to restricted 
financial 
settlement 
and income 

Likely Severe 

Red 

  

 Change 
programme 
includes financial 
scenario 
planning to 
accommodate 
potential 
reduction from 
WG. Directors 
have had 
meetings with 
senior govt 
officials who 
indicated 
uncertainty 
around budget 
but we expect 
confirmation by 
end November. 
Members have 
been briefed on 
the most recent 
circumstances. 

Change 
programme 
includes 
financial 
scenario 
planning of 
non-staff and 
staff costs 
also controls 
this risk 
through 
contingency 
planning. 

Indicative 
standstill 
budget 
settlement 
received. 
Further round 
of capital for 
unfunded 
pressures. 
Some 
additional 
sources of 
capital 
funding 
available and 
to be bid into. 

Internal and 
external 
audit, 
CIPFA, etc. 

19 - 
Corporate 
capacity 

Constraint on 
Authority’s 
ability to 
deliver 
services, meet 
obligations 
and realise 
opportunities 
due to senior 
officer 
capacity  

Very Likely Very 
Severe 

Dark 
Red 

  

 Transformation 
programme 
underway 

Exploring 
external 
support 
options 

Departure of 
delivery 
director and 
loss of some 
managerial 
capacity, 
coupled with 
work 
programmes 
that have 
some 
urgency are 
placing 

 

 

Page 115



additional 
pressure on 
CEO and 
others. 

22 - 
Inadequate 
general 
Reserves 

risk to delivery 
of services 
and viability of 
the Authority 
through being 
unable to 
meet 
exceptional 
unforeseen 
mandatory 
expenditure 
re: planning, 
health and 
safety, 
redundancy, 
etc. due to 
reserves 
being at a 
level deemed 
inadequate by 
the Section 
151 officer 

Possible Very 
Severe 

Red 

  

 Range of 
scenarios have 
been forecast for 
the change 
programme 
planning and the 
decision being 
taken by NPA 
which should 
lead to a 
balanced 
budget. 

 Pension 
valuation now 
received and 
has a positive 
effect but not 
sufficient to 
alter 
probability. 
Scoring will 
need to be 
reviewed in 
light of 
change 
programme 
decisions and 
anticipated 
out turn. 

 

 

      

    

Page 116



 

High Scoring Risks 
 

 

    

          

Risk Register CEO 
CorpServ 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall 
Risk RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

Health and Safety risks 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Overall Risk RAG  

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Risk Description Current Period January 2020 

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance 

06 - 
Compliance 
failure/litigation: 
external 

The risk to the 
Authority 
brought about 
by a failure in 
health and 
safety 
compliance in 
the Park as a 
whole 
resulting in the 
potential for 
litigation 

Possible Very 
Severe 

Red 

  

 Risk 
assessment 
training now 
complete for 
>60 staff, a 
few remaining 

   

09 - 
Compliance 
failure/litigation: 
our estate 

The risk to the 
Authority 
brought about 
by a failure in 
health and 
safety 
compliance 
within the 
Authority's 
land or 
buildings 
resulting in the 
potential for 
litigation  

Possible Very 
Severe 

Red 

  

 Risk 
assessment 
training near 
completion, 
directors' 
training 
complete. 
DPP 6 month 
check 
completed at 
PYF. Asset 
review report 
received and 
being 
actioned. 

 Some Cwm 
Porth issues 
remain 
outstanding, 
to be 
progressed 
at next H&S 
meeting. 

 

 

 

      

    

Page 117



 

High Scoring Risks 
 

 

    

          

BBNPA Risk 
Register 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall Risk 
RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

Risk Register Delivery 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Overall Risk RAG  

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Risk Description Current Period January 2020 

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance 

Business 
continuity 
and 
reputation 

Business 
continuity and 
reputation risk 
arising from 
increasing 
reliance on 
fixed term 
project-
focussed 
contracts 

Very Likely Severe 

Dark 
Red 

  

 Under 
discussion 
with HR 
and 
Finance 

 Uncertainty over 
structure is 
changing risk 
scoring. Key staff 
at risk, other 
significant roles 
already unfilled 
(delivery director, 
sustainable 
communities 
manager, principal 
planner), leading 
to potential 
reputational and 
delivery impacts. 

 

 

 

      

    

Page 118



 

High Scoring Risks 
 

 

    

          

BBNPA Risk 
Register 

 

       

 

Overall 
Measure 

RAG 
 

 

Overall Risk 
RAG 

 

 

Overall 
Action RAG 

 

 

       

        
 

 

    

 

Risk Register PLA 
 

 

    

 

      

 

 Overall Risk RAG  

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

  

     

      

 

Risk Description Current Period January 2020 

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance 

01 - Risk from 
Members 
overturning 
planning 
recommendations 

 Likely Severe 

Red 

  

Reviewed at 
PMT following 
recent 
member 
decisions 

  2 
instances, 
one called 
in by WG. 

Internal 
and 
external 
audit. 

07 - DC Service 
Performance 

Risk to the 
Park's special 
qualities and 
Authority's 
reputation 
through poor 
DC service 
performance 

Likely Severe 

Red 

  

Reviewed at 
PMT - loss of 
resources due 
to change 
program, 
leading to 
additional work 
pressure and 
potential for 
insufficient 
managerial 
scrutiny. 
Issues now 
arising relating 
to lack of 
problem 
solving early in 
planning 
process. 

    

 

 

      

  

 

 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



NO. Stage 1 Stage 2 Summary of Complaint Date received Date responded
Within 20 working 

days?
complaint upheld? STATUS Planning Delivery Corporate

1      1              -                  Mid Wales Hospital  11/4/19 2/5/19 YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

1      -               2                                                                                       - 2/5/19 7/6/19 YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

2      1              -                  National Park Failing - Planning 

Application 18/16603/FUL 16/4/19 17/5/19

YES Partial CLOSED X -               -                  

3      1              -                 
 Adoption of SPG  - Former Mid-Wales 

Hospital 2/5/19 3/6/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

3      -               2                 request a stage 2 4/6/19 17/7/19 YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

4      1              -                 
 Planning Permission Failures - 

18/16068/FUL2 3/5/19 6/6/19
NO Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

5      1              -                 
 Complaint about an officer making 

unprofessional comments 14/5/19 -
YES withdrawn CLOSED -               X -                  

6      1              -                 
 Complaint received in relation to 

Mountain Centre Caters renewal. 14/5/19 31/5/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED -               X -                  

7      1              -                 

 Complaint in relation to publishing 

personal information on authorty's 

website 31/5/19 7/6/19

YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

8      1              -                 
 Complaint received in relation to not 

responding to emails 10/6/19 18/6/19
YES Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

9      1              -                 
 Complaint ref Former mid Wales 

Hospital adopted SPG 26/6/19 15/8/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

10    1              -                 
 Complaint on the way the SAR has been 

handled. 24/6/19 19/7/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED -               -               X

11    1              -                 
 Complaint in relation to Enforcement 

case  20/7/19 15/8/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

12    1              -                  Complaint received against Officer 

representing their powers in order to 

fulfil their own interest costing the 

complainant considerable amount of 

money. Changing the goalposts on 

several occasions  

22/7/19 19/8/19 YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

13    1              -                 

 Complaint about a Member of staff’s 

attitude towards equality and diversity 

issues. 27/7/19 29/7/19

YES Partial CLOSED -               X -                  

14    1              -                 
 Complaint about the Mountain Centre 

address to a Member of the Authority  8/8/19 2/9/19
YES Upheld CLOSED -               X -                  

15    1              -                 

 Complaint in relation to planning 

applcation - 16/14319/FUL change of 

use. 19/8/19 19/9/19

YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

15    -               2                
 Stage II  investigation to be done by 

Monitoring Officer 18/10/19 2/12/19
YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

16    1              -                 
 Complaint - disgusted with toilets 

provided at the Waterfall Car Park 30/8/19 2/9/19
YES Upheld CLOSED -               X -                  

Audit & Scrutiny Committee 
SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS

1/4/2019 - 21/01/2020

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 11



17    1              -                 
 Complaint received about a planning 

application that has been granted 22/9/19 21/10/19
YES -                                       CLOSED X -               -                  

18    1              -                 
 Complaint on filming on the Black 

Mountains 3/10/19 25/10/19
YES Partial CLOSED -               X -                  

19    1              -                  Complaint about enforcement case 20/9/19 25/10/19 YES Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

20    1              -                 
 Complaint relating to a planning decision  16/10/19 13/11/19

YES Not Upheld CLOSED x -               -                  

21    1              -                  Complaint - Decision report on Planning 

application and Enforcement case 2/12/19 7/1/20

YES Not Upheld CLOSED X -               -                  

22    1              -                 

 Complaint - failed to inform complainant 

on development taking place behind 

their property 9/12/19

YES Not Upheld CLOSED x -               -                  

23    1              -                 

 Complaint about officers behaviour 

being unprofessional and totally 

unacceptable. 20/1/20 0/1/00

YES -                                       OPEN -               -               -                  

P
age 122



NO. FOIA  DPA SAR EIR
Date 

received

Date 

responded

Within 

20 

working 

days?

STATUS

1      X -             -             X  Information on Former Mid Wales Hospital 8/4/19 9/5/19 YES CLOSED

-       -             -             -             -            internal review requested  9/5/19 7/6/19 -               CLOSED

2      -             -             -             X  Seeking finforamtion on enforcement action taken by 

planning authority in rlation to properties offered for short-

term lets via platforms such as Airbnb 

25/4/19 9/5/19 YES CLOSED

3      X -             -             -            Information request on amount spent and brief summary of 

project/purpose consultants the authority used between Jan 

2016 to Jan 2019 

3/5/19 0/1/00 YES CLOSED

4      X -             -             -            FOI information relating to Ecologist  6/5/19 23/5/19 YES CLOSED

5      X -             -             X  FOI infnformation regarding the Feasibility study for which 

the Black Mountains College was awarded £82,500  

26/6/19 17/7/19 YES CLOSED

6      X -             X X  Information and SAR relating to Enforcement case was 

received in planning on the 17th May, but was missed. It was 

sent to MZ on the 21st June and MZ contacted requester and 

17/5/19 7/8/19 NO CLOSED

7      X -             -             X  documentation on discussions taken place referringto 

Pontneathfechan Community Centre 

29/7/19 27/8/19 YES CLOSED

8      X -             -             X  Information on enforcement case ENF/19/02023/MCUP3 6/8/19 3/9/19 YES CLOSED

9      X -             -             -            Request for information on emails exchanges between the 

Principal Planning Officer and Member during the period 

from when the Highway objection would have been received 

5/9/19 1/10/19 YES CLOSED

Audit & Scrutiny Committee 
SUMMARY OF INFORMATION REQUESTS

1/4/2019 - 21/01/2020

Request elements

Summary of Request

P
age 123



10    X -             -             -            request of information on 3 years tax years on running legal 

function/departement 

20/9/19 10/10/19 YES CLOSED

11    -             -             -             X  request for information held by the authority on Trail 

Hunting 

7/10/19 29/10/19 YES CLOSED

12    X -             -             -            Request information on IT Service Management  28/10/19 30/10/19 YES CLOSED

13    -             -             -             X  Request for Pre application information 1/11/19 25/11/19 YES CLOSED

14    x -             -             -            request for Freedom of information on Complaints made by 

visitors to  the park 

13/11/19 10/12/19 YES CLOSED

15    x x -             X  Freedom of Information Act 2000 application for all notes, 

reports, emails and meeting minutes in electronic form 

relating to ENF/16/01668/LB and LBC application 

11/12/19 10/1/20 YES CLOSED

16    x -             -             x  legal advice issued to local authorities by Natural England in 

regards to its position on nitrogen and phosphorous pollution 

in or near Natura 2000 sites in England. 

24/12/19 15/1/20 YES CLOSEDP
age 124



 COMPLIMENTS LIST Date:  21st January 2020

NO DATE COMMENTS
40 08/01/2020 Thank you email for Daisy Hughes Dc Admin for all her help into an old planning application 
39 20/12/2019 Email thanking Alan Bowring for great presentation that he gave LOR branch meeting
38 27/11/2019 Thank you email from Community leader thanking Eleanor Flaherty and the Wardens who supported their walk this year. The 

way you they worked and adapted to our needs and abilities was great and made the trips really easy.
37 14/11/2019 Thank you email to planning for their help.
36 13/11/2019 Thank you email to Planning for their kind and very swift reply 
35 07/11/2019 Thank you email to Davina Powell and the Planning Team for responding to their planning application so efficiently 
34 07/11/2019 Thank you email for all the help Kate Edwards and National Park Ecologist for all they help with their planning application  
33 05/11/2019 Thank you email to Jane Pashley for all the pertinent information that was provided to them.
32 03/10/2019 CEO at Honourable Artillery Company emailed Paul Sinnadurai stating that he walked the ridge south west of Talybont 

Reservoir from Pant Y Criegau to Tor y Foel and north east of the estate from Aber up Twyn Du and over to Fan Y Big. He 
noticed the great work that BBNPA are doing on the path at Twyn Du and the new (cattle?) fences on the path at Torpantau. 

31 23/10/2019 Phd Student emailed thanking Paul Sinnadurai for giving a really interesting and informative talk. His talk gave me the chance 
to appreciate and reflect upon all the different challenges he and his team face on a daily basis to manage the Brecon 
Beacons park. He admired his passion and commitment, which made me realize how important it is for us to protect our 
landscape the local community.  Thanks again for your time.

30 18/10/2019 Willowtown Primary School, thanking the Education Team.  The children had a lovely time with all the planned activities 
which fitted well with the seasonal topic the children were doing 

29 25/09/2019 Email from South Wales University of South Wales, thanking Hayley Sharp and Geraint Roberts & Education Team for a 
fantastic day.  The comments and feedback from the students and the teaching staff were all positive and reflected by a high 
standard of presentations the students done.

28 16/09/2019 Email to DC Helpdesk for providing them with invaluable assistance
27 11/09/2019 Email thanking Jane Pashley for helping to provide information on Tree Preservation Order so promptly
26 11/09/2019 Thank you email for Sheila O’Brien for being proactive and pragmatic way in dealing with the enforcement case 
25 03/09/2019 Email from a Member of the public  thanking Jane Pashley for the impressive service, speed in dealing with their query 
24 02/09/2019 Email thanking Jane Pashley for the swiftness of her response.
23 26/08/2019 Email from member of a ground force engineering company would like to thank Jon Pimm for the way he handled a high rate 

resident who was cursing at him.
22 21/08/2019 Email received thanking Jane Pashley for the her assistance and the comprehensive answer provided 
21 20/08/2019 Thank you email for Clare Brooks and enforcement team for handling the case with professionalism 

P
age 125



20 20/08/2019 Thank you email from Brecon Town Council to Chris O Brien and Helen Lucocq for attending meeting, it was very useful.
19 08/08/2019 Thanking you email from Filming company  for the professionalism and guidance from Jon Pimm, Bronwyn Lally and Wyn 

Morgan 
18 05/08/2019 Thank you email to Kittie Powell for the prompt response in relation to urgent tree-cutting 
17 30/07/2019 Email from member of the public who was attendee at a meeting in relation to LDP Consultation , and would like to thank  

BBNPA Planners for addressing potential queries from the publics in relation to LDP Consultation 
16 25/07/2019 Thank you note from one of the Prince Trust thanking the authority for the opportunity to work and learn and for the 

experience which has given them confidence.
15 18/07/2019 Email from member of the Public thanking the Prince’s Trust for doing a first class job on the Rights of Way at Old Rectory 

Close
14 17/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Development Control admin team member Alex Ham for providing a brilliant hatched plan 

and for all her help.
13 16/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Development Control admin team member Sarah Halliday for very speedy and helpful 

response
12 02/07/2019 Member of the public thanking Clare Brooks for carrying out brief check of the authority’s records in relation to building in 

question
11 07/06/2019 Thank you email sent to Donna Bowhay and Kate Edwards for the speedy attention to their query 
10 28/06/2019 Member of the public thanking mountain centre staff Gaynor for her time and effort spent in replying to them 
9 12/06/2019 Member of the public from Cardiff Ramblers thanking Lisa Lloyd, Clive Williams, the Wardens, and volunteers for creating 

the paths behind the trees as discussed. 
8 03/06/2019 Various thank you emails to Sunita Welch, Suzanna Jones, Alan Bowring, Wayne Evans, Peter Bradley, Geraint Roberts, 

Toby Small for doing a tremendous job in Hay Festival Walk.
7 03/06/2019 Thank you to Richard Farquhar and Rhys Powell for their assistance in taking part with the repairing the PYO Letterbox Aven 

at Porth yr Ogof Cave entrance to stabilize the platform, from Caving advisor to BBNPA 
6 29/05/2019 Thank you email to Hayley Sharp, Geraint Roberts and Anna Edwards from Chew Magna visit for the wonderful time the children 

had. The children gained so much from both the great range of activities that you provided but also by your warm, professional 
approach which made the children feel very comfortable and helped increased their confidence levels.

5 21/05/2019 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water thanking Jon Pimm for his assistance at Llyn y fan Fawr.  He was very supportive and knowledgeable 
which made their task easier.

4 30/04/2019 Thank you email to Donna Bowhay for the help and input 
3 30/04/2019 Received various compliments for the information staff at the NPVC for they help and guidance
2 22/04/2019 Compliment form sent into the authority stating “My family and I recently walked the path from Pandy to Hay Bluff. The amount 

of work done on the path is massive. The area is superb and the path made it relatively easy going. Thanks so much for all the 
work to enable easy access and protect the scenery. It was good to see the paragliders flying the area as well. They all 

P
age 126



seemed very friendly and polite.
Thanks so much”

1 02/04/2019 Thank you email to Sam Ridge for the help provided to filming company, stating he was amazing 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments since last Audit & Scrutiny Committee Meeting 

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Action Tracking
	6 Q3 Budget Performance
	Enc. 1 Budget Monitoring Summary to 31/12/19
	Enc. 2 Project Scorecard to 31/12/19
	Enc. 3 S106 and Affordable Housing contributions to 31/12/19
	Enc. 4 Additional in-year funding award letter

	7 Pension Fund Triennial Valuation
	Enc. 1 Pension Fund triennial valuation explanatory report
	Enc. 2 Pension Fund triennial valuation results schedule

	8 Wales Audit Annual Audit Letter
	Enc. 1: WAO Annual Audit Letter
	Enc. 2: SAC Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol

	9 Internal Audit progress report Q3
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit progress report Q3

	10 Performance and Risk review - quarter 3
	Integrated Assurance Framework quarter 3
	Detailed performance report - quarter 3
	Detailed Risk Registers – High Risks

	11 Complaints, Freedom of Information and Compliments
	Freedom of Information
	Compliments


